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your cooperation to be environmentally friendly.



o

ﬁMMﬁm&’“ﬁ

GAN CLAN SINGAPORE

WOR £ - F0E 3R

2017 FEHEXRRXITHME

HIH - 2017 £ 8 H 12 H (EH/)
T N4 2 I IE
b PR A S =T

18 5 B AL, [7/# 03-01
HIS[X 556745.

HEEM

?g@ﬂ%%%@'*%ﬁ, NERAZHINELEN 2V, T RFAE R R BRI A
o

EEANE
RIDFINBIR A = HEREH 26.1 2%, FE R BRSIEE I NHCIAFD T 50 HKA= 7

ﬁ%mﬂ@w:m BABRIE 2z =1 H (RSP E) , ST LR SE AT A
S

AT & BE AR ER AN F S, AER BRS AITHN 7 KRB g .

WReH s, #oET 20174 8 8 7H (BH—) X AEH: 6223 0739/ 9178 2041 =i FLHIT %
secretariat@ganclan.sg 52~ S HANECR .

RRARKZZHRBA 12 W 1E, G0 A 1R 2 IR A



WRIEHTINIB R A S R 5 AE, Rl RIS AL 2017 EE X R R/ T 2017 £ 8 120 (B
JAND T 2RIE, BEURAS=HOUET 2447

WHE AGENDA
1 2K
2. 2 2016 FEHF 2 RS2 WAL
FiEHE S Ordinary Matters

3. HE S S54ReE (2016/2017)

3.1F 5 4ab

3.2 E RS
3IUEBELZ N

BAS MK TAE
3SR EHX KBRS
3.6X 41K AR

4 WA
4.1 ZHEMBERE (2016 44 H 1 HE 2017 #£3 H 31 HD)

5 ZAT 2017/2018 4 H it/ ]

6 ZREARELER

KR E55

7 RS ERAT R A T

8 IR IX KSR FE &

9 HAhZui

AT = R AT BRI F 55, AIER BR S AR 7 R Hir g .

{Efa st i), TR AR FhF A FEiE: 6223 0739/9178 2041; L E.: 6227 9967; HiHf:
secretariat@ganclan.sg. i .

PO 2~ = 245 R+
PR A



Tr
MMEBEEEKE RS

GAN CLAN SINGAPORE

OR £ - A0l E R

ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING FOR YEAR 2017

Date : Saturday, 12 August 2017
Time : 2 p.m.
Venue: Gan Clan Singapore, Heritage Hall (3 Floor)

18 Bukit Pasoh Road, #03-01
Singapore 556745.

1. Important Notice
In line with our efforts to be environment friendly, please bring along document to the AGM as we
will not be providing extra copies.

2. Quorum
Please note that under Rule 26.1 of Constitution of Gan Clan Singapore, the quorum of the meeting
not less than fifty (50) Life Members or 25% of the total Life Membership of the Association is present,
whichever is the lesser.

3. Members who would like to submit matters for discussion may do so in advance of 7 days of the
Annual General Meeting.

4. Please call our Secretariat at Tel: 6223 0739/ 9178 2041 or email to secretariat@ganclan.sg to
confirm your attendance by Monday, 7 August 2017.

5. Lunch will be served at 12pm for Life Members attending the Annual General Meeting.



All members of Gan Clan Singapore

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING FOR YEAR 2017

Notice is hereby given that in accordance with Rule 10 of Constitution of Gan Clan Singapore, the Annual
General Meeting for Year 2017 of Gan Clan Singapore will be held on Saturday, 12 August 2017 at 2p.m.
at Gan Clan Singapore Heritage Hall (3F).

AGENDA
1 Message from the President

2. To Review Minutes of the 2016 Annual General Meeting

Ordinary Matters

3. Report from the Council (2016/2017)

3.1 Secretariat

3.2 Heritage Centre Management Committee

3.3 Education Committee

3.4Membership Committee

3.5Recreation and Community Outreach Committee
3.6External Relations

4 Financial Report

4.1 Approved financial report for 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017
5 Appointment of Auditors 2017/2018
6 Appointment of Public Trust for Gan Clan Singapore asset management
Extraordinary Matters
7 Company Limited by Guarantee
8 Gan Foundation
9 Any other business

Members who would like to submit matters for discussion may do so in advance of 7 days of the Annual
General Meeting.

All queries may be sent to the Association Secretariat at 6223 0739/9178 2041; fax: 6227 9967; email:
secretariat@ganclan.sg. Thank you.

Honorary Secretary of
Gan Clan Singapore

Mr Gan Tien Chan



1 &K 3A
2B 2016 FEHESRRESVILFH

2016 FFE L 28 fEHEFELS A RESV LT

H . 2016 %8 H 14 H (A7)

(A 410 1 30 43

oo A PR A AT (3

EE KBk FE PBM

ESNES LT PEUREE . B S WA BUEEAE . SO TR TR K S B 44 2250 15 2 2
e X T 32

H R 24 N\

T RiAEE NS, RIS RER /N fE R4k s 3 T .
1. &KB6H
KFEE I Sk, 5355, SREARBEHESE KBTS RAS, ANBUAE 24 4.

KA TERER 26 KPIUH & AR SEER R 2 RS, 50E BN T 50 KA S s
HRIKAZ RBANBN A2 =+ (MG RERDEH)  HA POR SR SGE . fE1E
FEIT IS TRIIFAG JE /NP, SR M oRIE BIVEE AL A KA S RESREIT =, W& WAT
ARBEIEAT; BEART ARG LS, I HAT N FIR S S5EAr . IR 5 OB BEIE BV € B A
B, 2 WAFTPAgREEEET, (H2 2 W ENTEAOS A M ERE AT AR A, BT B .

B, BB R ek 18 1 E, R H NS RS K. BIESBRET TS
FWR . X HAHRK, ARWFIEE, Hih ORI R, 5 BRI S

50 A IRt R D AAT o SRS 1A AR AN 2 SR i) e B8 B B R AL A DR R AT 2E
W& TRAAKESINZREPE . R, GRS . 9 4 10 B SIS IR A
2 50 K. FHEERIE 1 INRoR B RS I 2 2. ROk a2 50 J& RN
REAIH I T Aok SN, A IR, AR 3835 A AT IBTE AHT I3 s n) & 2 53
THNESD, XJ& T A2 50 B RIASNH . 26—, AT 11 1 7 A 8 Hird g 5\ E
L1 B T 245 0 ) P — P I RO SR IR K 2 o BRAT W N0 AT R 28 Je Z B, IX 48
S S A R AR AR S

WUHBFE MR IAT I : — RIPBE . 8 flidr. BURA WA T & X R H 452
RITBIRIADD . AR BAS B /2 — DU ZAE 9 B 10 RS, Pr AR, R & .
DUER B BRGS0 Lf 20 o 1. AmEESSICERITE 40 /i7c. LK KRE,

REHIERA R . BATKTI G AR FINB R A X 7 7M. &% 50 FHIRRNE
K Eois RERIVE TSN UXKNT . BXEE. X2 KEETTUIR T 008 A H
KIS N & TR AUREGE H B TR ERIR, IR A AR B BRI

50 PREJEHM BT IE, BATRIZSE S QRIS A RIS RT3 2 s kiR &R T,
J5 RN B T RE S T o BBV BEAR SR ()3 2 RS AR S5 B . R N RE ABO 4G . 1AL
Page 1 of 63



WA AN KIE . PR A 2 IR R FU A, RIS G iR, &L,
PATEARK AT 20 JI oML e . SHFEMEIATAT 27 75 6 Too. ARz FH A H
¥E, ZUFRERKGENS, RTINS S FIRE R R, BTBLA 2 0 H BTN AN AT REGERF AR . fEUR R
BARFE, HLIFHBRKR, FENFITH S T 20%, @RS BEMHEE ST 25%. —KINEHE
WHRLH 40%, RN 15% 7] LATES R RIL SRR G BRSNS RIS . AT SR
BEo FIATDP B R 52 3RAT T TR A, O RLE A s AN R, 3RATT AT REZEZ5 L& Bl FH #8201 ik
G ARAFR AR BB, PR S Wit -

B A, BATRA THERIEAR KA FIFER WO . TR, RS R RATEE RN EETT
Bt ISR RIR A ZE 2 MBESE IR U SR I AL S, N 3R e = AEAE, S TNl A =k
B L. B R, ARG BIRAT—F, B B [ 25 2 2 AF H A Aok, Jeosmg
o WAL

2. R HE 2015 FREFEZRREEWER
LYK
JR iR SR BT B2 Ko R M I RS A DR AT BIR 28 7 e 0 PR 4 Y K3

~RNFERR, A THEN LA AERBEBRI JUA W G RO 2RI T AR A = Lt
— A E A B2 S A DY R PR RBOE R — R RSB, MR S H H
it T~ oK

Bk, HEXAEX W EAARREHE R AT ERM A 2 W 55877 R AT s/ VAR T Py
FSRF B AR AT I

B RYFNT Eia RRE B3R PP I0,  Ron Ay SR I IR B2 2 e 8 F0 10 8 %
WIREPAT, —BEN. BT 5 E - mEESMTETREANT, HEE DA RBAR T2
IS0 HEIR, = REFEANINS 5 EARIRMEL, W HRR 258 X P I Fto AT AR A1 A
IR HRAE S PAATRE A 2K — R ARSI, NG EEFRESWN EZ 2 REREL
HE e B HAT .

ERR KA N A RS2 LR R RGN, DOVBEEN THRFI AT, Bk
AT NPV R B S AT AT A I a0 T i AT o B 2 e T A GRS T S H i 18 . AR
RVUCE REE B H W LRI, PLEBEFATREMuE P it ig.

JIBER KA R, S KREESWC R LSR8, (Hl T HE AR JTe KRS
LA A OCTERE, BUES AT AR . AN A LRSS, BB TR RSN K
XSRS QLD 8 B2, SRR SIIARE: B= KRN
BEFI, AT KM S A HF 2 RIS KRR IEH U 7~ — kiR, HRAE
UERTE AR R R ILSRAE R o IR N RIS R XA T A IR, 52 L e S T N %
fEYy, TR ) fg— B U WA — N R B R ROZ A AT, AR5 PR ) o R AR RTIIE A, 45
ARATTEINVEAHIN) T fif, X2 ELBCER AR M

i o R RN AT MR K RS, BTk a2 A AR B, R BRATT e 2025 B 2 ) ) R
A B R EARWMAT S, BATLAEAGNESE, ARFERESMARKBES AR, SN
BB E TR, DI EHE IR R, BB REM R, BARERAGEZ D, EEEA]

Page 2 of 63



WAL O IX Bk, AW, FEasReE, ARSI FER NI $AT TAEFA R RRT
RMFIHEN, DB EF B RSS N Ut F 2 A R e o R, b
IR R AR T AR A B 2, RO A R 2%, XU i E B3k
IFTREE 2 1 AERIRT, HORHAR S IE AR AR A & Ao 22l iR H CEMA A S HEA
FAAE, BRI A BRI ST IR R %, FEHE 2 R R SRR M A et . IR
FEF NORIASE . JRAE M — S AU B A T sh AT BRI -

JCEK (MR RRESEHEE) ks, 8 EIEEAE SR Em. BRI - HUX
PR, AT N ORAYH LA B e A B & . ORI AT B SRR, A
TR TS ML RSP EA FRGELDME RN L. BT A%, RIIPOZE B E SH
SRI, A FREAT O A AR, Wk BONE AR,

FHEFKNFE T EEKEE, WK RIS A, WARE . BOL S R = R T 40
T AR SR Nsm BATTE SIS, ARAEASVR T T B8 R F e B8 AR T T R ST A T A, BARK
SIEZN. ETHRFRN T L, HT2ZIELHAFMRR, MATHB DS, BATR 2 a0 250
SHBATE R . X TUFB RSB B RS IREF, BN RENS F K B 2 TN smE 4 .

SR, ARMAFSFENEN, BATT U ERMRIGE. EREEHEm, B 7&MsN, el
1, RS BN H T RIR G W 1, S KHE, RJRIE R BT 2 A, AU
ZARMRIEA S IIH L, BRI NS NS BAIE . KA WSS Gk~ = B4
K, IEARIELE T . AxCe P ANLHE, BEERSRED RIS KIE k. &
FHMBIE, BTSSR, REWMFAR. ETERES—F, AN NP EEN . SKRIE
HEMN2RECKRD, AHEFx BIREE AR, KELaf Sk, —8mse, 4
REIE AR

Re—giid EFEER RS MEBE0R,

U R
B F5E

EEES

IHELLSEHE (2015/2016)

3.1 RPAIRE (8% KRB, BIE%: M)

LPOEK:
SSHRAS TR, A I ST

3.2 MW ERSRE (XF: e, THR: 0l pev. XA+

LPOEK:

R ERIN, SUWIEEE T ANBCRAH 150 A, (HREXN AN RBATES) 28 1ok
M2V . 5HAEYE R SN AL, S0 ARG .

Page 3 of 63



A B S SHSLRE R HS S5 R L H AP NNES), (ERAAAPZERER 24T, HeRATm
TN R A . B AR PR E R LD s SR L, [ SO R st et 1R R AL
BE, RATHEACE A FIHURT IR ORI

FF AT T H S s S Ta R, %3 4 H 30 Ha P, 5 H 1 HAIS A
7 H, KBS =REES, ERESSVOREIFHEAIT 20, IR RMAET]
H—TE 5, (HRERHERG I, ZRIPRAGUE, IEEAS 50 F4ER, It R s
R ANZEIFRAE. HEESIREE T ER S RIRURAS 2L FURSU T B SLE.
— R UL L H SR B AR 2 HOSCA T, B Se ETE  TT, (ER RA  SR A FR
WSy, BIEA AL E SR A=

T 5 Ay, BEFCURK— R, JUHRREXAS R el BRG] 1T 2 AR SCE
ARG F, S TASMRKRMINAT . B, AATEN S L REEE B BRSO TR N
NG B S A R AT —EIf ], (HRAZ S 7 3Cst 15 DU E 352l D g 5 E 7 B
R LU N T BT IE VR A E B MR s B B . R, SRR T SO o ] 2%
AT ORI IR R R, R AT s T, A Ao A I B SRR T

PRANE AT AR 0] BAT S 2 BER S 4, W28 LR AR S —F RIS s, R
WEEN R WA T LIS, RN IEH IR ER2# A DO EE, MR s,
MEAORIE SN &+ EPEH 2847, ARRMCRIT ARG ShiE 2 25 T .

£ 50 JASEHE B SO A IR R b, AR AR SRR RN XSRS T A SR
RIS FAEl, ek 7R A A TE . TR, A & BN e i M B BF, X
TEOKEA BRI BlRR el AR, BAE S REEDIRA S MBS E
b, BRAE R AR 2 HES VRO SR B A DR AR A e, 75 2 S P R AT 2 2 b P

i AN IR A AR R B EOR I AU 1A AL R (BN, fER ERIRZ SRR
AR 55 2 FEHIZRKAT, SRR T MR A AR U S AR B0, AN R S AR D55 .
ATV RIAEM A 2 B~ e PR IR B i A S (AR PR R, DR MM SCHF, Dy 50 AR IRAE
BRI AR WA B ISR -

E TGS Chig « a3 , AR RBRTAERR, LEH%EESP L. B
JREANLE, FTBLEEIEAAR. £ TSN b BIE S ERB=HIET, mAxZE
FRIES . AEGARTT HRHGEAR = WREER A, Bk a2z it B L2 0Ot H, £MEL
etk B AR AT DU — 28, KM RE R RS AR R (.

R A MBS SO H B . B TR TR S T R iZa 1%
LB KRS MBS R Ros BB S BT E L M EEA R & EIH . 2158 HRE &
BEACR R 2 B EARITES, T RATRER —EA MK, RINMBRRKES. T L2
MA W ERISH —XEME, RN RIARLS 52 Z0R, RRIE 2 —TUR AR
WiH, ZUrE SRR AT LUE B 2T REA Wi S 2 80, [N 800 At AT 2E S Ak g 5205 T
W, WA BIE B — R K PRASK TR EZ N EIEIHE

WS b, R LB A R R S 2 AR, B RASMRIRE 2. 1 HAM D
B FLIL), WHIRR 0T A . Aa BRI HRE EA a5 BRI
W25 R AP R A TR 2 18] o AR KR e T A e T nSB i Ty Jas I 2% 7 (0 395 3t 38035 g i o o5 1
Ji o It RTINSO i R IK R A BT 2 SR H &S, DAL R RS, XS

Page 4 of 63



PR
Vi —EERATAL AT R B AR R, W ERAEENOR — AR, DR~ 2. 5T
B N 2% FE A B .

MR, ERERKERASIINRAIR Z 5. R 2R & EE Y&, H21%m
] R GRS AR BUIRE RAFIEL? B8, BRAS TUE —SaE R, HEAGL
i5? HARLY, REAEEEM RIS IR @RI AR EL, S EERE
WUEIHAL, BEN=T B, =5,

Jity 8 3% 2 B S S P IR A S B, SRR RSO SR — MR E, AONE R XS AMET A
AR CRBIR SR, ERSCEMEN A ORMIEFERE AN . FATBOL S 153 52 A
SE PR SR iC BE E R R R A X A SRS B CRIMRIEA i 7. [FI e HE
TSRS . FES S RGN ERTHIEN, RAVZHHE S RMUR B4, FRE
A S5 TARRHEAT IR B2 — OB K 2538, DU sc i, 2K KWK A B Es), A
REZTRNIIR A 2RSS .

FATHRIE 10 A 22 H (AITPHZ BRI MAl) &30 EAUL S E R R E, Pl B
KR A 5% S R ULis 8. RIS BRI SRk RE . 6 PTa iR 30 247 L 552A4E 3 i fi th
S mAAL, I T b TMATA o FN T 2R e R HPUK BT S A T,
SRR TN AT NS 56 R, 5 A i E RS R kIR (iRiR) M3 E
IR . PRI PR, XS AR AP 2l Ble B S ERL 10 moF
I, WEthe B 50 22 5 KRS KOG, 5REMAZH. LI HEASASBIT T HE
Ja B AL AL FIIE BT, S A BATILREIE SR R IR ROk T B B SCAe P sy, IR A R kA
112 5EFX L CAHE BN, BAEARIUIR A SAHE 55 01, KRG HE R E

ETH AR THERAE, h TR RIEEIN, HFEELSHRAZMER. H
KN ERRIEFAE =2 uM e, FTHOE BRI B . F1U0 R T A 2 i i
%, WLBUIE BTSN A R T R A s R R T R BSR4
T EAL IRl BB ST RIRBEA RN . A S5, WEEH D AR EE
. HARIA TSI, SO E R FEEIAE NI T It.

FAk, R E SRR, o E R R IR B RS T SN B L R
Pl . EPTEFFRSIR KL — 3 e SR T %A AL BIE . [l X RA B4 3K
I E T — ) f B SCAGEE MG (ST TR, R A U I BT 5 = I 2 TR S R B A a1
55 2600 A RZE, JRRAIRE, BARENE WA, &&ENoy-ER T e, BT
WWE 25 4 5 TS S A%

BI3BEZRASHRSE (BR: WEE PBM. M, HE., ER. ER)

WAL

R KB F# 4 2016 FF#R
Report on Scholarship and Bursary Awards 2016

TR e kAU D2 AE 8 F 19 H, P Lk &5 S Il

BUK AR 131A AR H R &
GESS 131th Anniversary Celebration

Page 5 of 63



PR
BUKBA B T3H11H (BT , FA20 25 IE, B BAl 5 2447 131 4F B RL R
o PR 2 B S or SR AU R R AR A A R B 2

BALREEZBRAS
SPaEF:
MRS, THARHEFE.

S5 RAEHXREERS (XF: RE, BIEH: R
LR R:

K FRE RZBGEE A BT St AT, BB R LR S B IS, LR R RS
5.

3.6 HPBIBRR (BA: KIT. . R¥B)

2WAER:

3.6.2 BRANLFERIRAS 50 RESEERFTER 30 AEBERA 17 AES S RELEBRIKA
SBA RS 17 RELSEORK E

SKIRBERIR, MRESIC ARk ABUE, TRZR I S RIESh ) RERILH 30 fi7.
4 50 A <EHE BN AR

WAL

KRR TEFESRRE EEAHHE T 2 4$40,000 HJ#RH. MAEBFENRZEHTHE T
$15,526.63. XEHRN AR ~ANIH, HUEBIERINREGIMBEEE U . 9 H 14
H e ARG =41 45, 9 H 156 HA- E 10 bR 12 s, BPRBIRA RSV, WITEY SRR S
AL, XU [F] R 5 A R 2R AL«

ATl MR AREE SR 68 A, HAREMARIL 59 {7, FFHTRIRA 10 foK

J&, BATH TR R G e T Ie A HARHEA SR BRI TR 1 5 6 T2 e g
I AER AR 2 R 17K Tp

Page 6 of 63



2BEF

5 MEmeE (ZEMB: 0L Pem , BIZEMB: HH)

S8

BYEMBHSG (201544 H 1 HE 201643 A 31 H)

S RFBR T ECCL B KA R IEE A AL SR G A AR WA T, BIUE ST 2ok ks N
HRE K, A B S KA TRk

B R RAIRE SR Sl R KR, i EEIHE 2 e T 2 A Y 4 Tot. Ji5h, #£ 2015 4
A 23 TrHARYN, 2016 FEN R A 3,599 i, FEFFEET =Mz H AR T .

AR L, WA SC A, 83k, 2015 44 3,800 Ji, 2016 HiEEFE N ETFE 26,600
JG, HAFEHKG R £ 84 25,000 7t; A B MG 2 615 e inE 9,711 ju, NETIHML PR
BABImsEH R EFEE R AR AL A IR A &L, HTRED TR R, FE
WA T R T 1 JiokE . BRI B, M 2015 511 322,684 ol N 2016 4E1 335,542
JGo TESFAINE R B R ETH F 2015 F4# K~ 2,360 o, SENESE 5N 2,460 o, FEJRK
TET TS E B B Fr L

R e, HErB &R BN 247 T 462 Ju, EWIAFECE 567 T 457 jt. £ OCBC A — &%
B WrE iR BAR S AR, A 2 KRS .

SRANTE, WEREF /DA, £HT 50 AFERKFESERER 4 750 S, SFHFHEIIANEA
WA, EAEE SR R ERARLL BRI, (HIR 2 0 B &R7E &t . RAETFa 3R eEE 30 /i3 31 71
A, HERXREHEY, OfErIHEL 128 T, SLhrAF4 8 190 2 200 T A4, KIULH IR 276 T
oy — 2, RECKHIREIETY Rt R e

Kex—Fumid 2016 W54

W B
S w=H

6 &4 2015/2016 FEFEH A A

Appointment of 2015/2016 audit firm
LPLEF:

2 —FumL# 1 Heng Lee Seng LLP A4MERa 1HIH, ket FAEZRIM ARG, HF 2017 FE L
HREHNIE,

W MRE
HW: KT

1 REASTURETER

Appointment of Trustee for Gan Clan Singapore asset manag

£SPdFk:
Page 7 of 63



SPER
2 —FuE i H T AL SR A British and Malayan Trustee Limited 4k 5% B A 215 Hnk
B S 18 120 5, HEX4a'5 089832 /=ML, HF| 2017 4 R KB NIk,

UL B
S ERE

Rl

Extraordinary Matters

1. T RS RN IERAWENEM & B ESREM, RIS I .

2. BHERKAR EIR I K 50 i FRF T 12 5 10

fRr R RN, FERR 2 Bt A B AR B E S e T H B AR T AN 2 4 ) 5 T,
JESE Rk B 5 0 FUEARNS S A2, PRI ECR I H AL . SCAC TR AT I8 e bk K,
FRNEEREMIR. T B S A F MR &2, i EREEEE, R RIs R N A S
AT, BT EHEREX AN I

I Lo, BORERF IS EE ST, JATE S M2 7~ 28 N RNAZEAT I HEI, A HE
HARRRTT N, SERF RIS 4. TIPD00 R Ay BEAR AR BUIRSR ok P AR R, LR AR 4 i) 7 X
S JFEEHAR, BT EARNENRIE, KA xRS Ak .

ERHE A & 51, Hh—fGES, Fot® 2 2 77 8 Tt. bk V351, BREAY)
OICIER . el W = AR5, ABNTECA Re 4 BATTR AR ML . AR )\ 3cfe, e
R SRR A R o AR W AR SR A o J UL ) SRR AL S 505, A CEads 1. £33
TEZ7H, A SRS AL R SR 25 Sk 280t . AN AR A% 2 T 7 ZAE AR 2 I 1)

FIIHRIEE 40 AR L RBUR K Dl A4 583, (HA2 40 3] 50 1L Bk 1] 1 7 52 5 2L
AR . AN P S AR T ISR, I AR GERFIX S APE BB Ok, 50 AR FI S EA &
B ARBURSHHEN N EH AR, RATB O BGMKRER, EHN ENZAE, A2
TRiEAF oK bt /5 E AR 1 1.

ERE RPN RS U R R0 o i BT R A S ook AE AR 538 B VI 7 AT AR I A 22 A
A REfi L2 A ) BORMEBEE VHZ R NPT, b EEAT B 28UR, mlREAE TS B 2R A

XHE, SRR [N S VR B Y — BB RS e, A R I AN g BN R A4 FIAH . B 500 R
NEEG, AEHZIERED, FHMEAZ. 2TABEM, SRS LSNP ETEB], HeAR
SAHCHAE, H 40 FERH P HSATIRZ BUROC TR A 21X 50 F 5 52 SR AHC 80 R K.
T A LB s 0 7 R I, LR R RE S b (R 1) 52

IR, RIFHERKSE, AEEAE 50 RN K LT, AR FORIERED 2 Kl 15 B4
GO BN SO S R () R, BIIE IARYECE [0 5, AR R FRAT M (e, AT e I TR A DT
RS AR AT L LEBSET A 7 SOoRAC 8, 23T I A& W Z R REA, A 25 e
AT ULEHOR B . (ER A SRR S b, IR AMEE . WRFE R =5 % R,

Page 8 of 63



PR
IR A AL TRIL 8 J1% 0, W4 E KSR (ERRHHRFR VOV RS D FHE 7, 8
Ji7C.

BROCERM TIRZ TRHER S, HEMITIER TR B RIFHI R, & FHEIRATRME RN,
RIS X LR KRR Sk o T SCARTE A RN Hh i A N2 L FR R 7 A A S - IR et
RAL LI EAEE, BATATLUR RS, FIEER AR RATE LI N BB 5 S H
KRR B N HAE

FAEF KRR R TIE IS, ANBERR 2y B0 JAAERET o XS ik, oo 556 [l AR H S s A7 KR
I, WA PR KA S KN R 2 E 40 B ERTIBRIE VT IF 2 F A4 B UK, BIGEN, HEE2iE
7 LAY+ 4 SRR g

JIRER KRR, 40 M 50 HERIEOAR, 50 MEReEE, A EA EMER. HiEs
PRAN T 09 B 50 MR IR R FEA TR, WA ERAZ IRl EZ %, SLHABA
e AT TR KER, AN DN RBZAIN AN W IR R R oR =
I 228 ) B S 2 3t AL SN B AR SR IS o o A B8 3 R R I AL, RIS e A SR S I B &
RIS KBS A, ity 9Oc T B 4F.

SRR TR, RHES GREESNRE, TRLAARZIEAEZEESNRE. AN
i 3l LR L LI, S NAERE DRI 8] AR 52 BRI, Ay BRI 2] DUl — N RsE, BRAL— D
R B A B PSR, AR PUHIVR I 8] _E N AZ A MR UE . AR i 88— AR IE,
Hip— AN E, FECREFRHHE S, THEFRKNNENIZE AWM.

BRJA BRGSO R U 2326, RNTB R IEM TR 2 2 k0. SR
M=o T LS R 2 228, BAMRE 7est, tBn rIS, FESEARTAM. P

Page 9 of 63



HiEFES

3. HEHLLZWE (2016/2017)

31 ABAL B KR, BILEND: H8)
311 MGEBAMAIRE (RR: R, 24, 25, &)

SXGERIHFTEFFE AHFE 2017

H#f:. 201741 A 30 H
AN 13147

BEHWHBE KRS 2017

H#i. 20174 A 2 H
HEE NE: 90 f

51 AR KL 2

H#. 20174 H 8 H
HE ANH: 306 17

Y -5 RIS B

HiH. 201745 H 27 H

HENE: 5440

WA HG AP SRR AL i T I3 AE R E R K

HH#i: 2016 429 H 14 H
RoARFHENEL: 4140

WA oRARFR: 148 i

Bk FE SRR R R 3514

K=

H#A: 201749 H 30 H
R NE AR N B R 20VE S H

312 JRKER (HRA: DB, JbEE. i, R

BT ARSIV EBR IR SR, BIrEd % —F 8, ZAHIRKR—E. 232K
e TR, —3L4E3% 1 16848.76 JT.

Page 10 of 63



32 YMWEERSWmE (EF: M, RR: 30l eem, HMEL)

321 BESETFIRE SRS

2016 4 8 H#(Z 2017 £ 6 H, Ui NHuk 1227 N, “F¥EH 111 L%
3211 EWEEEES
HN SO =S 2017 Z B R SUAEE R H

H#f. 201745 A 10 H
M. 10567 (ERNPETEYD
EAEIFE: EZE YR (NHB)

BT RZFERNMAE, FEZ YRS FE TR A SR ER G B, 2875
N RIGRBE TGS . 2B SCHIE T I H S sh A 46 1 Ah & R = N A5E L
ey 5/

Pt 3/ ) N AE TARD 5/ R VM R 4 P IEJ A, 2R 51 30 73, Ak
FERBMMIERTIT 4R FAOMERBETINS LN, 3B BT . R Bk
HEAERARB T ERUERNEL 16 0 K=, hPEeIiEmnsit. Kia, &
T657 2 TR IR 5 P (82 P9 R T B 2h ok 2 T AIAL E I 3% 08 2 AR 2B I 7 o

JLEZ 2017

HiH: 201746 4 3 H
MiEE: 7140
EVEIKPE: BEZEXYR (NHB)

NE AR, BURSCTEAE JLE R 1 R, Rk 2 prea s A diah (K
JREAR S AR AT X . iSRS TXOE S IR ANE TR . K
BB 7 SR ) /N I 5 AR IS 2l 37 5 J P R PR B LK 22 AL 22 B 2 Jifida 2 (1) L
TRV 2 N B LAFLBUA s 1 R GRTED B I HE 8

3212 CHKIES) (EIp I EhiEED)

HEREZRZ-FREASY

H#H: 2016 %8 H 4 H

HFE#E: 80 1f

FIrAL: EEhS

R UK SCABTE

WSV, BILSTEN R N WS TG E @k s P B B L HERE. M

P 5 0 L 55 5 T AL R 0 S R L3085 2 5]
LMV 2 SR E A

Page 11 of 63



SR E R KB TR A SJE N RIEURSALE S ) THK SR 2008 PR A AR 6
KA T UK IIREIR S SE3E ) g S, [ 43 0 1 A B R Uk LU 2R il B2 52
Fro SRR T AR T E PSS AR, FL T BRI SR AL N IR B sz KR A
SR

2 Mk is B B 2 S AL

H#H: 2016 410 A 22 H
M. 143 i1
FIEAL. TWIEE RS

AR LRI e MU S A ITUHRTE S — [F2E 0. SIS SIA & = A K E A
2 SRS RINTES) . ST B B SRR IR T g, IR 5IA
RHEER RSB EERSAT.

BRI ENA 2 LA T BUK AL I 2R TR AR & 58 FON R E N iR X . 2, i
WIS E SR 52 SR g o7 i ot B HL B B GIRARD BIBETE, RO TRATI A 32
Geif) o DMEIIRET GeiE) Bxrs. 4L, . B BEEMEWNER St LS
o PHEHR G, EREE BRI ST BT A 8ot sebe L2157 1R
A HEWR BHHIN . BR . AL REAAER L2 BT FAE 7150
RN T 5 IR R 1 B S AR Sl A ST T 22 A28 2 B IR AR AX
e

ATF OBV NER IR

HH#i: 201742 H 26 H
H 5. 150
FIrRAL: I ER &
Y. BURSCAEE

A EREHIMBAER . EARB IR LI I ek P80y [
MAEFRIE] .

WEER AR HA SN WA B 2. & RABE R F 7 RTE, 3%

feo MR RL CMTEF ) Jvdll, MAETEHIIMEE, PSRRI E, RIREXTTER
W, PLEFRIE S A2, R AR B 045 DR A 250008 s AR R AE I A0 Y
fth A TEARNE S A NSIEMFE R 055, BTN, W EL5I
i, IR

“RIFREIES) 20177

Hif: 20174 H 9 H

H#EE: 80 fr

TN LB INYR 2 SEREG B
R BURSCABTE

ARSBUIRASHLESESEEERE - FS 5RO, SF—LR5] T 124
WEH. BREDASZH T IRX FUAARE ST 2R PV AR

Page 12 of 63



L a2 B M SN S 5 E AT R . 2R, BB WAECIUR A K
JE (ARG TR WG R B A0 ) A A Ir) e, 2 LI RS T
Ko HEE I NMLE RS . B LW B I TS,

T 12 15 30 4, BrA SR E4E Orchid Country Club =A%, AL
P A BTN, RS i s S E A &

7 AR S 2017

H#: 2007 7H 1H

HfE#: 160 fif

FIAL: HIISCR 2 SERE B R e IR R

R BRSO

I 12 (a4 S st i M 480 %2244 ik 12 HZ 5 I IES) . A R4S 5iEsh
FEAHE S 3 B E (R 4 R LD o« A SRk vl 4E AN S A . M
SN SARTNET -5 B TE 7 9 2E 3 B4 .

HURZERZWEDN 160 A2z A R B I, i1 2 scghrh e, Ry, 1
IHBUR 7 SR A2l TRRIT 3N (BUKBUFER AR 2D &
PSR LEAES Y,

3.2.1.3 HApwSy5

Bethesda Bedok-Tampines Church £&jj

H#H: 2016 4F 11 A 18 H
ZVi#: 451

ISR R - AR BN E S

F#: 2016 4F 11 H 22 H
WEE: 13147

PER 7 ) 32 2 B R B D1 SN SCAG R AR A8 EE T O RS
(7 I 7 B2 AR S U S R SR BT NI 2 B, BESRATA BT SCHf

3.2.1.4 HAbED

Hhae N RIERE g r A+ AER
H#H: 201649 H 26 H (ZH#—>
WK R s FR T IR AR
. SRR, 5
LA I AERER 150 B4

H#H. 2016 4£10 H 30 H (E#H)

Page 13 of 63



88 VARG RIESE = B Tp) IR N L e}

FKFEFITR

H#. 201741 H 7 H
WAL HT NIRRT (STB)
HEE . 5

AR T B

H#. 201741 A 27 H
A HT NS e R
.

3.2.15 ERHFHEEIAZMK
FRPE-EREAFEIZMR

H#H: 2016 4 10 H 25 H
HFE#E: 45140

WK SRR T NEEND T MEMESTE S IESIER X B4, AN T 2
TEBESL T RE M ST SAE BTk . B HIRS U REiL A SR EIR—Z1)
NF

- EREEFI MR

H#A. 201743 H 22 H
WEE: 41140

BRSSP o 5B AN AT o BTFBONRIX G W R &S .
RO FEAY, HEEZmREREAES, FENHAGITEEERS.

3216 WHEH

PP 2H R BB IR R e P K s 2 S I AT SR A I BN [ 5 S S 1A P ) o
Ji DA B 22 B0 A0 A5 7

3217 BIGHIE-BARESM

NHEC B INSE 2835 H AR N AE 2 M s s b 4T, W s iR 38 5 s 2 R A8
150 A HioC T 26 52 BR . BRA S AEAE UGN EHIETAE 7 B R4
TISCRE, B GER N H e SR T H

Page 14 of 63



T 2016 & 11 A 14 HASHSRIEXBE@EK, WRINRE 2 FohE . XG5 s
T At ml H A AR TE N R B e tb st r B R—10 11,

33 HERASRE (TR JE PBM., i, HFE. TR, ER)

331 MERXBI%¥4E 2016 W
K et 2016 4F 10 A 22 H (BN , BAS =0T 2847. &4

R A T 3400 JT, S EAAEA 15 45 BisE4e Nk T 6500 oG, SEEA
ﬁ 9 % o

332 BKRFR 132 AERKEBHIRA SFARK KRR M4
T 20173 A 10H (BMT) , R4 2 IE, BEFUKBCFARALE 2547 T 1%/ 132
JE FF PR L BB I PG £ S AR 3 T R T 2 i 2 AL

AE—JUNH 13 MBI A S AR (4 100 o) K 10 PR A SRR 2 (0
200 ) T 23 fusAd, BN 3T 3 HIt.

34 ZREFBRAR
341 SRNEHE

H AT A2 E TR R U ANBOY 727 £z, Horp 704 20K A& . 13 #oiER
AL LR 9 BADER B

Fritks i ¥ H
KA 2 R 8
Hita i 5

35 BRIREHXEREERS (XF: BE, BIER: BF)D

351 ZRAZH

T 2016 %EF7 HZE 20174 6 H, HET T 112 R2Z K.

Page 15 of 63



H # AN¥
2016 £ 7 H 29 H 8
2016 %8 H 26 H

2016 9 H 30 H 10
2016 £ 10 H 28 H 11
2016 4 11 A 25 H S
2016 4 12 A 30 H S
20172 H 24 H 9
20173 H 24 H 9
201744 A 28 H 12
2017 4£5 A 26 H 8
2017 /£ 6 H 30 H 10

36 HEBER (RFE: KITL. k. X%
361 XHIEZAEEISERE

P BkISE BAX
1 WneR e 2GR =1t mFFE2 A RE -

2. BB K % R 24 IR Z 5% 8t
3 WO R 2 A 2= 92 IR T
4 HOMIE A IR 2> 110 JA A2 PRI T
5 HOINIE T8 25 78 JHAF R T
6 Wil 22 23 V8 52 JHAF IR $200
7 RIKAS: 87 JHFERIR T
8 IR A R TR TR T R 9 S AL T
9 PHRE S - &5 AR DB i B $200
10 | BrnBcE KBS HEHERM T EMUL & 0T LR e T
11 | Bk ER 2 Tl B AL i T
12 FnBeR 2 KRG B2 0 KR s

13 | Frinste A T AL

14 | R RS RAL

15 | MKEXIRITFRES

36.2 IRALFEFRA< S0 AESHKEFRE 30 AEBALA 17 A4 5 SR LH
RAZEAEBE 17 AFELRBREKE

ALRFT 2016 9 H 11 H (BN , W TRYS KA =I5 R E 5T
T AT 28 R SR VU D B FE AR A 2 50 SR EFER 30 e 17 FES
TORPEW AR A SECE M2 17 FIEL SR EEs, MR HEIES N EEILE 29
7.

Page 16 of 63



TGS 2 bR, ARSI DR U RS B2 9h T A2 50 PRI 174 5 S 35 R

WU PR A 2B NZ 2 50 J8 2 R S TG sh 28 9 [RI I VT i 4 S g ma s, DARALAE .
3.6.3 9 A 14 X 15 Bigsh =2kt

2016 -9 A 14 HM EARSHAT 10 =M B AT 148 frifg A omog . A0 17 ik B 353

. GV, PEARESE: EE. WL WL, . SN RS ER. FYIL B

oL V. VLPE. YL

AR Je o ARERSL 41 4z, Ak BRI ISR B 22 i S T ok
IREIL 35 M th 2 H s, — R/ ook L I

9 A 15 H B4 2 W FR M Ah 2 565216 S R A 2 2 BT ST TR

364 % 14 pHABIKREERERS
14 Jeth R R sREAE R O T 2016 4 11 H 8 H, il Rl B 2847 . AR [FEII 28
Jr T 9K 8L AREEH (2016 4511 H 5 HE 13 H) , L 25 iARFHE 7 ik
Kz, ALJRZH 2000 Hioc (AHEET 10000 ST AR M) T REPIRHI.

365 HIEBKRAKS
FEJREBHIRAE KRS T 2017 4 4 H 22 HZE 23 H, BIHEIMIAZRAT. K78 [FE B

20 TR 4 REEHEA (201744 B 22 HE 26 H) , 9K ERE 7KK
2=, KR4S 300 #Fiot (M T RP: 3,000,000) AT K4 IR .

4 MEHE (BEWBL: X reM, BIZEMEL B8
41 ZWMEIHRE (20164FE 4 H 1HZE 201743 H 31 H)
PER B S R I —

5  FAE 2017/2018 SEFEFHHAF

PR E I 44 1T Heng Lee Seng LLP & T FEEF I 54RE, HF) 2018 FF 2 7
KEBIF NI,

6 ZEATVREEER

R H H AT A SIS R B British and Malayan Trustee Limited 4% 224 B\ 2378 #r ik
R ORI 18 7120 5, MEIX 45 089832 (17~ \k, HF| 2018 fFEE 4 i k4 ik,

R B35
7 R HERARA A

ARNEEHRA R AT FI, WRSWEE T LA:

Page 17 of 63



1.

3

TPV A PV A A RS PR 2 W) 1) FE PR 2, AP 2 2 0 B 0 QAL ORI 77 2%
Bl AR N R, VONREAA KNS RA & IMEE IS —BE ™, AR
R TR S), AR BRI

LHRITE NS &, FIRAFEEH LR, PRt e . H ATk A+ EEE
SO PR 2 "SR AR A R M AFH R IR MHA . MR, i
PEAR AL B AT PR 2w il & B 18 DI /5 22

T, li?ﬂ%ﬁ&mﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁA7ﬁ%§ﬁ%@%aﬂ%
BEUE, YONH TSR AL, BRARRS ZRAFMAT, A4 HHEE.

8 BURAXREH &

ARBOLIIREE G HE, HRZUEBE LT LA

1.

2.

3.

4.

PUE R B BN EE N A T RA 4, B AN TS BUR RS 5e 0. BEik
WAROL CFS Ja, R RE LA B AT A4S, i CFS 2AUE HL,
PR, R —HIPRRAEE)SE, AL EHIIHEESBNBRIENAS
HA A &

He R T A X iEsh, 5 2 A2 0 - X TS 305 BB H
W, A RefdE IR

MEEUL L, YORTUH FTFE AT/ NA G4, [F RN %N R R 7R A IR SRR RE )
FHHERE LT M A

a) 1E#: BURHX R ERS

b) —Rid%E B s REER 4.

HHe b O F SR R 3 LA R S KA R AT T R, BRI ESH H HEERH
INH AL

oAl IR
T2 BOE AR/ BRI H ST, AIER GRS HIFAT 7 A 51 i

Page 18 of 63



Meeting Minutes

1 Message from the President

2.To Review Minutes of the 2016 Annual General Meeting

Minutes of the 2016 Annual General Meeting

Date: 14 August 2016 (Saturday)

Time: 10.30am

Venue: Gan Heritage Hall (3F)

President: Gan Giap Leong PBM

Host: Mr. Gan Tien Chan (Hon Secretary), Mr. Gan Cheng Lu (Vice Hon Treasurer), Ms. Gan Ee
Bee (Centre Director of Gan Heritage Centre cum Vice Hon Secretary)

Record: Ms. Lua Hong Wen

Attendance: 24 persons

The meeting was postponed half an hour in order to meet the quorum.

1. Message from the President
Good morning everyone! This is the first Annual General Meeting organised by the current Executive
Council and only 24 persons attend today.

According to the Rule 26 of the Association’s Constitution, no business shall be transacted at an Annual
General Meeting or an Extraordinary General Meeting unless a quorum of not less than fifty

(50) Life Members or 25% of the total Life Membership of the Association is present, whichever is the
lesser. If within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting,
if convened upon the requisition of Life Members as provided herein, shall be dissolved, and in any other
case, it shall stand adjourned for half an hour to be held at the same venue. Notwithstanding that the quorum
may not be achieved after the adjournment as aforesaid, those Life Members present shall be deemed to
form a quorum, but they shall have no power to amend any part of the existing Constitution.

First of all, I would like to thank the last meeting for appointing the 18 of us to be the Executive Council. |
would also like to thank the Executive Council for voting me as the President. The Executive Council also
elected 7 Advisors. There have been much good news in the past ten months, one of them is Gan Heritage
Centre was awarded for the second time, which the Curator will report later.

The 50th Anniversary Celebration Dinner was held successfully too, | would like to express my gratitude
to Minister of Health and Honorary Advisor of Gan Clan Singapore, Mr. Gan Kim Yong and his wife as
the Guests of Honour to host GCS 50th Golden Jubilee Anniversary Celebration Dinner. | would like to
thank all the Executive Council, members and their family members who had attended the celebration.
There will be two upcoming events: First, on 10 September, GCS representatives will attend the 50th
Anniversary of Gan Association Selangor & Wilayah Persekutuan, who has also invited clansmen from
China. Since GCS 50th Anniversary Celebration Dinner did not invite foreign clansmen, we will grab this
chance to invite them to visit GCS. This will be an extra agenda of the 50th Anniversary Celebration.
Second, on 7 and 8 November, we will organise a trip to the biennial World Gan Clan Conference in Qufu,
Shandong, China. During the trip, we will visit the Temple of Yan Hui and Yan Family Mansion. The
Honorary Secretary, Tien Chan, will give a more detailed report on the trip later.

| believe the two main responsibilities of the Executive Council are protecting the property and continuing
the missions. This hundred-year-old building is the Association’s tangible property. Renovating the building
in future will be money consuming, so we need to broaden sources of income and reduce expenditure in
order to save the Renovation Fund, which currently stands at $200,000. The Executive Council will increase
it to $400,000, which, according to the experience, is still not enough. On the other hand, our intangible
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property is Gan Clan Singapore itself. In the past 50 years, Gan clansmen have shown their love to family,
Association, and country through continuing the family line. The Association’s future relies on the young
Gans, as they will be the hope and strength of GCS in years to come.

The end of 50th Anniversary Celebration marks a new beginning. We should learn the passion for
association and spirit of co-operation from our founding leaders and predecessors, and continue to set a
standard that could be followed by the future leaders. The team management still depends on integrity and
observing the rules. Gan Clan Singapore is lucky to have a property like this as a source of income, we have
received $200,000 annual rental in the past few years. This year, the rental income is expected to reach
$276,000. While the terrorist incidents are increasing and the economic growth remains slow, Singapore is
inevitably affected. The Association’s revenue is unlikely to remain unchanged. Although we have generous
revenue, the expenses are very high too. Expenses on personnel accounts 20%, Building Renovation Fund
is expected to account 25%, General Expenses account 40%, and the remaining 15% will be spent on
recreational activities, Education Fund and Gan Heritage Centre. Our clansmen, Cheong Or and Seow Peng
suggested that we should broaden sources of income, but since the interest earned is not high, we might
need to consider putting part of the fund in some middle or long-term investments in order to earn higher
income.

In conclusion, we could not ensure the same revenue in the future. Thus, it is important for us to broaden
sources of income and reduce expenditure, and take preventive measures. | encourage clansmen to share
the history of Gan clan to the younger generation or encourage them to find out more by visiting Gan Clan
Singapore. | believe when the time comes, they will follow our path and contribute to the Association.
Thank you.

To Review Minutes of the 2015 Annual General Meeting

Ee Bee raised that two major agendas including Company Limited by Guarantee and Gan Foundation had
been discussed in the last AGM needed follow up action.

The President, Giap Leong PBM, responded that the issues were delayed due to the preparations of several
major events, such as the 50th Anniversary Celebration, receiving the visit of more than one hundred foreign
clansmen, and attending the 14th World Gan Clan Conference in Qufu, Shandong, China.

The Executive Council will discuss the necessity of the issues alongside our financial ability. A committee
will be set up to discuss their feasibility.

Tien Chan confirmed that the issues had been raised in the last AGM. He hopes the Executive Council could
discuss and implement them. He informed that although he is more than willing to carry out the tasks, he
does not have enough ability to do so because he was busy with taking over the jobs from the former
Executive Council and the 50th Anniversary Celebration, added that the Council and members did not show
much enthusiasm in the participation too. He promised he will discuss the issues with the President, and he
hopes the Council could actively share their opinions in the meeting.

Lian Chong opined that the current Executive Council members are not familiar with the issues and no one
has explained to them, so they do not know where to start from. He hopes the proposer could explain the
issues to them during the Council Meeting so that they could further discuss the issues.

Ban Seng added that several reasons have slowed down the issues: First, when the former President
suggested the issues in the last AGM meeting, the current President was absent; Second, the President is
not familiar with the issues; Third, when the President raised these issues in the meeting, the former
President and Ee Bee, who are more familiar with these issues, did not attend the meeting, so the President
left it to the next meeting, but it was not recorded in the meeting agenda. Ban Seng suggested when the

Page 20 of 63



Meeting Minutes

issues are discussed again, the proposer should be present and explain to the Council how the issues should
be implemented. After that, we should send letters to inform the members.

Ee Bee agreed with Ban Seng that how to push GCS to new heights is something we should think about.
We have to acknowledge that not many young clansmen are joining GCS and the number of members is
declining every year. Although it is a bold attempt to implement the suggestions, we still need to face the
challenge and keep improving in order to attract the participation of young members. The responsibility of
carrying out these projects should not lie solely with the proposer, the Executive Council could appoint
more people to carry them out. For example, Leong Khay Huay Kuan has made a meaningful attempt by
setting up an education fund and promoting it to universities. We could see their effort from the newspaper,
and other associations are making different new attempts as well. Ee Bee mentioned this is the fifth year
since she joined GCS, she observed that the public has strong interest in Gan clan’s history, we should
improve the way of introducing it to the young Gans and organizing more cultural and educational activities
in the coming years.

Ban Seng (Council member of Leong Khay Huay Kuan) opined that each association has their own unique
strength. Leong Khay Huay Kuan turned their partial property into cash form for other investment purposes.
They use their strength and make investment, then use the interest to contribute to their clansmen and
community. Ideally, GCS should find out our own strength and make investment accordingly.

Woon Chin agreed with Ban Seng. He opined that Gan culture is long-standing and has many sages. The
purpose of setting up GHC is to promote our own culture. To attract more people, we could improve the
promotion of Yan style calligraphy or researches on Yan Hui or Gan culture. Many clansmen’s children are
English educated, we should think about how to attract them. He praised the outreach programmes of GHC
and suggested the committee to continue improving them.

The President concluded that we could list out varied rules clearly but the management requires not only
rules but also integrity. For example, the recent AGO auditor’s report shows many problems even after so
many rules were made. He believes that the leaders should uphold integrity, as it is the value that could
ensure the unity and future of the Association. GCS very much depends on the effort of the former presidents
on its way to its 50th. The rules are amended year by year and carried on by the Executive Council.
Regarding the Gan Foundation matters, a committee will be set up to review it. Lastly, the President hopes
the Executive Council could be responsible and voice their opinions during the Council Meeting, as we
need to reach a consensus in order to do the jobs well.

The meeting approved the minutes of 2015 Annual General Meeting

Proposer: Lian Chong
Seconder: Yok Tia

Ordinary Matters

3. Report by the Council (2014/2015)

3.1 Report by the Secretariat (Honorary Secretary: Tien Chan, Vice Honorary Secretary: Ee
Bee)

Minutes of Meeting:

Tien Chan reported in the meeting. There was no other discussion matter.
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Report by Heritage Centre Management Committee (Chairman: Ee Bee, Committee
Members: Boon San PBM, Dr Shi Xing)

Minutes of Meeting:

Ee Bee reported that the average visitors to GHC per year is 150, they are visitors who came not
by special invitation. The visitorship was lowest amongst NHB Museum Roundtable members.

Joining NHB Museum Roundtable requires us to participate in many national activities, but we
face the challenge of manpower. Event like red packets giving activity during Chinese New Year
is relatively simple, as the National Heritage Board will design and sponsor the red packets, what
GHC needs to do is only providing the hall for visitors to collect the red packets.

On the other hand, the preparation for the Open Houses during Singapore Heritage Festival takes
a longer time. It was held on 30 April (Opening Ceremony), 1 May and 7 May, the three-day
activities were the outcome of more than twenty meetings. It is stressful to arrange this event but
it provides very positive impact. The 50th Anniversary Celebration of GCS happened to be on
the same day with the Open Houses’ Opening Ceremony, so only Ee Bee attended the Ceremony.
The Guest of Honour, MP Baey Yam Keng, was invited to the GHC guided tour led by students.
In fact, there are several heritage centres nearby, for instance, Pioneers’ Memorial Hall was open
at that night too, but being the MR member got us the opportunity to receive the Guest of Honour.

In one of the Singapore Heritage Board meetings, we received a strong recognition in the report
on Bukit Basoh Street Party, which attracted more than 5000 visitors. The Street Party is held
yearly. Although it has just been a year since GHC joined Museum Roundtable, we have
participated in the Singapore Heritage Festival for 4 years, so we feel it is meaningful to hold the
Street Party at Bukit Basoh Road, where many Chinese associations are located at. Ee Bee also
reported on the two-week exhibition held during the Singapore Heritage Festival, it was organised
by Singapore Heritage Board and co-organised by GHC.

Ee Bee said the details could be found in the meeting reports, for example, this is the first year
we join the Children’s Season; We need to attend 4 Museum Roundtable meetings every year;
Some talks were open for Council members and staff, but they were held on work days. There
will be will related programmes for staff to participate in the future.

Ee Bee reported that at the 50th Anniversary Celebration Dinner and Singapore Heritage Festival,
she hosted and entertained GCS’s partners who have gave us great support and assistance. During
the dinner, some attendees who thought from the perspective of the Chinese community, had
different opinions with the Guest of Honour’s speech. Ee Bee mentioned that GCS and GHC have
been in the limelight after winning the award for the second time, thus we should be more cautious
when arranging the tables for our partners and preparing the speech.

Ee Bee thanked the Association for giving her the award at the dinner. She felt stressful for being
awarded among so many partners and more senior clansmen., so she decided to share the credit
with her partners. To express our gratitude to our partners, we are planning to invite all of them
to the Scholarship and Bursary Presentation Ceremony. It could be a perfect ending for the 50th
Anniversary Celebration that lasts through the year.

The Xinyao Song Sharing Event could not be continued due to the members’ works. We could
invite them again if we have chance. The Spring @ Bukit Pasoh Road was initiated by Ee Hoe
Hean Club and Grassroots Book Room, and jointly organised by GHC. The news report about
GHC was lesser, but since GHC has organaised Open House for a few times, we could be more
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low profile while co-operating with other associations so that every heritage centres’ features
could stand out.

GHC Open Houses and collaboration with other partners are increasing every year. The visit by
Confucius Institute of NTU was made after their President and Dean had visited GHC and agreed
to have more collaboration with us. The Cultural Heritage Walk for Students was organised by
SFCCA, it might be organised twice a year in the future and we will fully co-operate with them.
Last week, GHC also worked with CDAC to let the senior citizens to join the Learning Journey.
Ee Bee mentioned it is a very good activity, the visitors felt glad to see the new look of the heritage
centre while learning the culture and history. We will have more collaboration with CDAC in the
upcoming projects.

Ee Bee thanked some Council members and Advisors for helping to entertain the associations’
representatives who came to visit, such as Hui Ann Association and Huang Clan Singapore. GHC
Open House normally begins at 10am, or between 2pm and 5pm if the visiting group is bigger.
Ee Bee was invited to the Chinatown Light Up Ceremony organised by the Singapore Tourism
Board (STB). STB hopes to have more collaboration with GHC in allowing tourists to visit GHC,
nominal fee will be charged for visiting group like travel agency to lift some financial burdens of
the Association. If this plan is implemented, we might need the assistance of staff as the
visitorship will increase.

In response to Ee Bee’s report, Lian Chong reported that GHC has received compliments from
the community. Currently, most of the activities are co-operated with the National Heritage
Board, Lian Chong asked about how we should get more young Gans to join us. Secondly, he
asked was the budget for GHC enough. If it is not enough, should we seek some sponsors? He
suggested having 4 to 5 sponsors every year, with 2 to 3 thousands, lasting for 3 years.

Ee Bee replied that the two issues are very important because many people have a wrong
impression that GHC is only promoting the culture outwardly but not to our own clansmen. In
fact, the role it plays is to reach out to the younger generation. The purpose of setting up GHC is
to revive the interest of young Gans in their genealogy and cultural traditions, as well as to
promote the use of Chinese language. Last year, the Scholarship and Bursary Presentation
Ceremony was held during the Istana Art, working as volunteers was a brand new experience for
the awardees. More than ten parents opined that it is a meaningful activity and they hope their
children could serve for GCS.

We plan to present the scholarship and bursary at the Distinguished Speaker Lecture cum
Scholarship and Bursary Presentation Ceremony on 22 October. Mr. Gan Kim Yong will be the
Guest of Honour. Also, we will invite our partners and 30 student volunteers from 6 schools, to
whom we will present the certificate of appreciation. The activities on that day include guided
tour led by student leaders, who will introduce the exhibition and games to the visitors. Then, in
the second session, there will be a talk on the Analects and education by Prof. Lo Yuet Keung.
The biannual talk series is an attempt we make for the new clansmen and younger generation. Mr.
Gan Kim Yong will arrive at around 10.30am and then he will share his thoughts on joining the
community services with the attendees. The details will be announced after the schedule is made.
We hope young Gans could learn about our own culture and history through this event, so that
they could work as the volunteers representing GCS while participating in the national cultural
activities, and it will be more meaningful.

Regarding the sponsors, as GHC is not a statutory body, we have to raise fund through GCS.
There is actually a cash of $30,000 in the Heritage Centre Management Committee Fund for
upgrading the centre, such as installing the stereo system to play the introduction or micro film
of Gan Clan and to enable visitors to tour around themselves. It will take some time to prepare
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3.4

3.5

3.6

Meeting Minutes

the proposal to the sponsors. The budget for organising cultural education activities comes from
the annual budget allocated by the Association. According to the current allocation, the annual
budget of GHC Management Committee is $15,000.

In addition, Ee Bee received a call from the National Heritage Board, informing that the CEO of
National Heritage Board will nominate GHC to participate the President’s Challenge. The
organiser will give around $1,000,000 of cultural subsidy to different cultural associations. As a
candidate of this subsidy, the financial reports of the past three years will be reviewed to check if
we are eligible based on financial criteria. If qualified, GHC will receive a minimum subsidy of
$10,000 to $20,000, or a maximum of $75,000. Our financial report is being reviewed now.

Report by Education Committee (Committee Members: Giap Leong PBM, Tee Hiyang, Ee
Cheong, Yok Chun, Lian Chong)

Minutes of Meeting:

Report on Scholarship and Bursary Awards 2016
As the application deadline for the Scholarship and Bursary is on 19 August, so there was no
matters to be reported.

GESS 131th Anniversary Celebration
GESS 131th Anniversary Celebration will be held on 11 March (Friday), 2-5pm, at the Hall of
GESS. Ee Bee will attend the event on behalf of GCS to present the scholarship and bursary.

Membership Committee

Minutes of Meeting:

The Honorary Secretary reported in the meeting. There was no other discussion matter.

Report by Recreation and Community Outreach Committee (Chairman: Ee Cheong, Vice-
Chairman: Teck Lee)

Minutes of Meeting:

The President reported that the Members’ Night is still ongoing and he hopes everyone could
continue to share the news and encourage more members to participate in it.

Report by External Relations Committee (Members: Tiong Kang, Tee Hiyang, Tien Chan)

Minutes of Meeting:

The 50th Anniversary of Gan Association Selangor & Wilayah Persekutuan, the 30th
Anniversary of Youth Group, the 17th Anniversary of Ladies Group and the 17th
Anniversary of Federation of Gan Association of Malaysia Celebration Dinner

The President reported that the registration had closed, 30 clansmen will attend the event.

Report by the 50! Anniversary Dinner Committee

Minutes of Meeting:

The budget of $40,000 was approved in last year’s AGM. The committee managed to save
$15,526.63 and it will be used in the short visitation of the foreign clansmen There will be a
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welcome dinner on 14 September and they will visit GCS on 15 September, 10am — 12pm. The
President encouraged the clansmen to attend the event if they are free.

Foreign clansmen who have confirmed their attendance including 68 persons from Fujian, 59
persons from other provinces, and 10 from Philippines. The committee is still contacting other
foreign clansmen. Although the remaining budget, around $15,000, might not be enough, the
committee will still try their best to organise the event.

Financial Report (Boon San PBM, Cheng Lu)

Minutes of Meeting:
Approved Financial Report for 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

The President informed that the Honorary Treasurer, Boon San, could not attend the meeting
due to the general meeting of shareholder of his company in Malaysia. He had prepared his
report in advance and it was presented by the Vice Honorary Treasurer, Cheng Lu.

According to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Cheng Lu reported that two and a half
month rental (around $40,000) was undercollected. Besides, there was $23,000 of other income
in 2015 but there was only $3599 in 2016, that was mainly due to the reduction of venue rental
on level 3.

The Statement of Expenditure shows that the main expenditures include donation (it raised from
$3,800 in 2015 to $ 26,600 in 2016, in which $25,000 was donated to SFCCA), professional
fee (it raised from $615 to $9711 due to the legal fee for the transition between tenants, trustee
fee and building revaluation fee), staff’s salary (this year has one employee less than last year,
so the expenditure on salary reduced around $10,000 compared to last year). The overall
expenditure raised from $322,684 in 2015 to 335,542 in 2016. The Statement of Comprehensive
Income shows that the income from investment in 2015 was $2,360 but it dropped to $2,460
this year due to the market fluctuation.

The Balance Sheet reflects a cash of $247,452 and a fix deposit of $567,457. There are some
investments in OCBC. The Balance Sheet remains similar to last year’s.

The President added that the slight change in cash flow is because part of the expenses from the
budget of 50th Anniversary ($40,000) had been included in this fiscal year. Although the
expenditure increased in comparison with last year, they were still under control. The President
entioned that the yearly expenditure needs $300,000 to $310,000, but this amount includes a
depreciation of $128,000, so the actual expenditure should be around $190,000 to $200,000.
Therefore, there will be some surplus from the $276,000 rental fee, and it will be transferred to
the Building Sinking Fund.

The meeting approved the financial report of 2016.

Proposer: Theng Meng
Seconder: Cheong Or

Appointment of 2016/2017 Audit Firm

Minutes of Meeting:
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The Meeting approved the appointment of Heng Lee Seng LLP as external audit firm to audit
Gan Clan Singapore’s financial report FY 2017.

Proposer: Ee Cheong
Seconder: Tiong Kang

Appointment of Trustee for Gan Clan Singapore Asset Management
Minutes of Meeting:
The Meeting decided to appoint the current trustee, British and Malayan Trustee Limited, to
manage Gan Clan Singapore’s asset at 18 and 20 Bukit Pasoh Road Singapore 089832 for the
year 2017.

Proposer: Cheong Or
Seconder: Lian Chong

Extraordinary Matters

1

No request was received so there was no discussion matter.

Yok Tia raised the progress of the 50th Anniversary Commemorative Magazine

Ee Bee clarified that she suggested delaying this project in the council meeting because the rental
income decreases $40,000 to $50,000, and the $50,000 earlier allocated budget is insufficient. With
the duties of running Gan Heritage Centre, juggling her own career, family and mother, it is not easy
for her to carry out this project alone in short term. She will follow up this project next year.

At the same time, the 50th Anniversary Commemorative Magazine should be included in the new
vision. By understanding what projects GCS will carry out next or with the big picture in mind, we
probably can make the Commemorative Magazine better. Through unconventional compilation, we
hope the Commemorative Magazine could attract more young clansmen. Also, we could learn from
other commemorative magazines, for example, to report on GCS’s events more academically and
comprehensively.

Commissioning a writer to compile the Commemorative Magazine is expensive. One of the writers
asked for $28,000 for compiling the Chinese version. Three previously met writers could not provide
a clear compilation idea. Global Publishing publishes academic publications for universities. Some
other writers were rejected because their ideas tend to be conventional. Ee Bee hopes the Secretariat
could seek more quotations but it may take more time to review.

While earlier reports had been collected rather thoroughly by Eng Guan in the 40th Anniversary
Commemorative Magazine, it takes time to collect the information between the 40th and 50th years.
Including the information will make the 50th Anniversary Commemorative Magazine more
meaningful as it reflects the long history of Gan clan. Reports about Gan Heritage Centre will be
included as well. Since the information is ready, it should not be too hard to organise. Ee Bee
emphasized that we need to be very prudent with the selection of writer.

Lian Chong expressed concern about the budget. He would like to know what special contents Ee
Bee will ask the writers to submit. He also asked could some of the local information be edited and
integrated into the Commemorative Magazine, so that it could save some of the budget.
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Ee Bee informed that the printing cost is rising every year. If we set 500 copies as a target, no matter
more or less, the printing cost will not differ much. Regarding the contents, instead of referring
others’ contents, Ee Bee responded that the 40th Anniversary Commemorative Magazine already has
a detailed record on Nanyang and GCS’s history. We could present GCS’s own contents in the 50th
Anniversary Commemorative Magazine with a simpler presentation for pleasurable reading.

Ee Bee opined that the Chinese idiom Chun Hua Qiu Shi nicely describes the 50-year history of GCS.
She opined that a more novel way could be used to record the challenges GCS had met during the
founding period, the history, and the improvements and contributions we have made in the recent
years. The budget could still be adjusted as the Commemorative Magazine is not necessarily to be
hard cover. However, the writing cost would be high, for instance, Eng Choon Hway Kuan spent 3
years for publishing their magazine; Guo Association spent around $80,000 to commission a NUS
professor to compile their magazine. Ee Bee opined it will require $70,000 to $80,000 to publish the
magazine in this way.

Although much information had been provided to the writers, they could not provide a good outline
and required us to provide for them instead. Ee Bee could not help feeling doubtful about them. The
outline of Gan Heritage Centre was drafted by her and written by a researcher afterwards. She opined
that if we have more time, we could provide the outline and then find a suitable writer to write the
contents.

Yok Tia opined that if the publication was postponed, it could not be called the 50th Anniversary
Commemorative Magazine anymore. Ee Bee opined that the title would not be a big problem as the
40th Anniversary Commemorative Magazine also took several years to complete and it still used the
title of 40th Anniversary Commemorative Magazine.

However, Ban Seng opined that there is a difference between 40th and 50th Anniversaries in terms
of their significance. Ee Bee informed that publishing the 50th Anniversary Commemorative
Magazine was proposed in last year, but ideally it should be prepared two years in advance, and it
could not be in charged by a single person. Ban Seng suggested forming a committee to share the
work. Ee Bee reported that she had made the same suggestion to the council. Ee Bee informed that
the committee chairperson of this project is the former President, Dr. Gan See Khem, so it should be
led by her.

Seow Peng added that issues related to the Commemorative Magazine should be decided by the
Council. Since Ee Bee has expressed her own difficulties and the decision should not and could not
be made by her own, he hopes the council could decide what to do next and set a deadline for the
publication.

Finally, Tien Chan thanked all the clansmen who attended the meeting. He concluded that the
reports reflect both traditional and modern elements, which he opined would keep GCS on the path
of success, and he encouraged everyone to keep working hand in hand for achieving the next
milestone.
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Ordinary Matters

3. Report from the Council (2016/2017)

: Tien Chan, Vice Hon Secretar

3.1.1 Committee Report on Regular Activities (Members: Tien Chan, Keng Loon, Theng
Meng, Kim Hok)

Chinese New Year Celebration 2017

Date: 30 January 2017
Attendance: 131 persons

Qing Ming Festival Memorial Service 2017

Date: 2 April 2017
Attendance: 90 persons

515t Anniversary Dinner

Date: 8 April 2017
Attendance: 306 persons

Dumpling Festival Celebration

Date: 27 May 2017
Attendance: 54 persons

Welcome Party for Foreign Clansmen & Mid-Autumn Festival Celebration

Date: 14 September 2016

Representatives of GCS: 41 persons

Foreign Clansmen: 148 person

Representatives of Eng Choon Huay Kuan Singapore & An Hai Association: 35
persons

Mid-Autumn Festival Celebration

Date: 30 September 2017
Attendance: As at time of publication, this event is yet carried out.

3.1.2 Project to Fix Water Leaks (Members: Seow Peng, Giap Leong, Tee Hiyang, Tian
Chan)

Due to the old age of the building of GCS, water leaks had appeared at many parts. The total
cost of several fixings was $16848.76.

3.2 Report by Heritage Centre Management Committee (Chairman: Ee Bee,

Member: Boon San pBM, Dr Shi Xing
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3.2.1 Gan Heritage Centre Visitorship Update

Gan Heritage Centre received a total of 1,227 visitors between August 2016 and June 2017,
the monthly average visitors were 111.

3.2.1.1 Museum Roundtable Activities
Singapore Heritage Festival 2017 — Gan Heritage Centre Open House

Date: 10 May 2017
Attendance: 105 persons (Indoor Calligraphy Workshop)
Partners: National Heritage Board (NHB)

Due to the overwhelming response to last year’s event, this year NHB decided to oraganise
the one-day Street Party again in Bukit Pasoh Road, where GCS is located. In conjunction
with it, GHC prepared a series of activities for the Open House, including outdoor
performance, indoor calligraphy workshop and small exhibition.

The three-hour indoor calligraphy workshop and small exhibition started at 4pm. The outdoor
calligraphy performance started at 5.30pm, it lasted for one and a half hour and was conducted
in two sessions. All the performers were from Life Art Society. The performance began with
a fifteen-minute demonstration by Mr. Lee Wah Fong. Later, Mr. Lee and two other
calligraphists Mr. Khong Kum Weng and Ms. Du Feng also wrote words on the spot and
presented them freely to the attendees.

Children Season 2017

Date: 3 June 2017
Attendance: 71 persons
Partner: National Heritage Board (NHB)

In conjunction with the event, Gan Heritage Centre opened its door to the public for 1 day
during the Children Season. The activities on that day included bilingual guided tours provided
by students leaders from 2 schools (Gan Eng Seng School & Anderson Secondary School),
calligraphy workshop, “The Wee Question Mark and the Adventurer” performed by the
Theatre Practice, and Speech & Drama conducted by instructor from the Confucius Institute
of NTU, the content of this activity centred around the travel of Confucius and Yan Zi around
the various States and the values of Confucianism.

3.2.1.2 Cultural Activities (Organizer/Co-organizer/ Venue Sponsor
Recreation and Community Outreach Committee — Visit by Senior Citizens

Date: 4 August 2016

Attendance: 80 persons

Organiser: Chinese Development Assistance Council (CDAC)
Venue Sponsor: Gan Heritage Centre (GHC)

This visit was enriched culturally and artistically by the traditional Hokkien opera “Gaojia
Opera” presented by Chin Kang Huay Kuan, in which the male actor plays the female “Chou”
role. On the other hand, Kong Chow Wui Koon also presented the performance of “Huadan”,
musical instruments and introduction of the origins of lion and dragon dances.
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GHC was the last destination of the visitors. The curator, Ms. Gan Ee Bee explained the
origin of Gan Clan and the history of the ancestors to the visitors. Meanwhile, a video about
the cradle of Gan Clan, Qufu in Shandong, was played to introduce this historical cultural
city and the mansions of Confucius and Yan Hui to the senior citizens.

Distinguished Speaker Lecture cum Scholarship and Bursary Presentation Ceremony

Date: 22 October 2016
Attendance: 143 persons
Organiser: Heritage Centre Management Committee

The scholarship and bursary presentation of 2016 was held together with the Distinguished
Speaker Lecture with the aim to encourage the members and youths to participate in more
Chinese cultural activities, inspire their interest in their own cultural roots and motivate them
to join the volunteer services of GHC.

On that day, GESS student leaders were arranged to give guided tours to the participants.
After that, Prof. Lo Yuet Keung from the Department of Chinese Studies of NUS explained
the Analects based on his research on this classic, to enable the audience to explore the
meanings of benevolence, ritual, filial piety, loyalty, integrity, and other values in the
modern society. It was followed by the launching ceremony of GHC’s participation in the
Google Cultural Institute, officiated by the Minister, Mr. Gan Kim Yong. The ceremony was
witnessed by the National Heritage Board, Google Singapore, the press, committee of GCS
and clansmen and their children. The Guest of Honour, Mr. Gan Kim Yong, also officiated
the presentation of scholarship and bursary, and the presentation of souvenirs to Friends of
Gan Heritage Centre.

Public Lecture — Koh Mun Hong talks about the fragrance of flowers

Date: 26 February 2017

Attendance: 150 persons

Organiser: Singapore Association of Writers
Venue Sponsor: Gan Heritage Centre (GHC)

“Koh Mun Hong talks about the fragrance of flowers” lecture is the first co-operation
between Singapore Association of Writers and Grassroots Book Room.

With an innate adoration for flowers, artist Koh Mun Hong plants and admires flowers at the
Buddhist Temple every day. On the topic of “talking about the fragrance of flowers”, he
shared with us his knowledge about flowers and the mutual compliment between it and his
paintings and poetry through a life-based perspective and approachable talk. The talk
covered the roles of flora in daily life, ancient people’s admiration towards flora, and Mr.
Koh own experience in painting flowers. He also quoted poetry and displayed pictures
during the talk.

Project C.A.R.E 2017

Date: 9 April 2017

Attendance: 80 persons

Organisers: Chinese Development Assistance Council (CDAC) & Singapore Federation of
Chinese Clan Associations (SFCCA)

Venue Sponsor: Gan Heritage Centre (GHC)
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This was the second time GCS participated in this event since last year. This year’s event
attracted the participation of 12 associations. As part of the activities, GCS arranged
exhibition guided tours and question-and-answer session. The guided tours were led by
student leaders from Gan Eng Seng School and Anderson Secondary School. Later, based on
the contents of the guided tour, questions were asked through 4 different Chinese dialects
(Hokkien, Cantonese, Teochew and Hakka), participants who answered correctly were
awarded with small gifts prepared by GCS. Council member Dr Yan Shi Xing also attended
the event.

At 12.30pm, the elderly were brought to Orchid Country Club to enjoy their lunch. The
representative of GCS Ms Gan Ee Bee, Dr Yan Shi Xing and Mr Ngan Theng Meng were
invited to the lunch too and received a plaque of participation.

Cultural Heritage Walk for Students 2017

Date: 1 July 2017

Attendance: 160 persons

Organiser: Singapore Federation of Chinese Clan Associations (SFCCA) & Committee to
Promote Chinese Language Learning (CPCLL).

Venue Sponsor: Gan Heritage Centre

This event was joined by 12 associations and destinations; 480 students formed into 12 groups
to participate in the activities. The organiser divided the associations into 3 lines (4
associations in each line). Gan Clan Singapore (GCS), Sri Layan Sithi Vinayagar Temple,
Kong Chow Wui Koon and Ee Hoe Hean Club — Pioneers’ Memorial Hall were the 3rd line.

On that day, GCS received 160 students from Serangoon Garden Secondary School, Maris
Stella High School, Dunman High School and Seng Kang Secondary School. They
participated in the exhibition guided tour led by student leaders from Gan Eng Seng School,
and the calligraphy session.

3.2.1.3 Visit by Other Organisations

Visit by Bethesda Bedok-Tampines Church

Date: 18 November 2016
Attendance: 45 persons

Visit by Singapore Tourism Board - Travel Agents

Date: 22 November 2016
Attendance: 13 persons

The main purpose of this visit is not only to promote the history and culture rich Bukit Pasoh
Road, but also to gain support from associations while developing Singapore.

3.2.1.4 Other Activities
Celebration of the 67th Anniversary of the Founding of the People’s Republic of China

Date: 26 September 2016 (Monday)
Host: Chinese Embassy in Singapore
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Attendance: Eng Guan, Ee Bee

Commemoration of the 150th Anniversary of Sun Yat Sen’s Birthday
Date: 30 October 2016 (Sunday)

Host: Chinese Embassy of Singapore

Attendance: Eng Guan, Ee Bee

Chinatown Light Up for Chinese New Year

Date: 7 January 2017
Host: Singapore Tourism Board (STB)
Attendance: Ee Bee

Chinatown Chinese New Year Countdown Party

Date: 27 January 2017
Host: Singapore Tourism Board (STB)
Attendance: Ee Bee

3.2.1.5 Learning Journeys
Hong Kah Secondary School — Learning Journey Programme

Date: 25 October 2016
Attendance: 45 persons

The guided tour not only explained the differences between surname and locality clan
associations to the students, but also the functions of the formation of clan associations and
the contributions of our predecessors. We believe students’ understanding about the clan
associations could be deepened through the tour.

Fajar Secondary School — Learning Journey Programme

Date: 22 March 2017
Attendance: 41 persons

This two-hour programme was divided into two sessions. The first session was begun with
the exhibition guided tour and question-and-answer session. The second session introduced

the calligraphy activity, guided by the calligraphy instructor, students had a chance to get
hands-on experience of writing calligraphy.

3.2.1.6 Consultation

Two groups of students from NTU sent emails to interview GCS’s experience in joining the
Museum Roundtable.

3.2.1.7 Subsidy Application — Singapore Gold Cup
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In conjunction with the Singapore Turf Club’s annual charity race day and Dester Singapore
Gold Cup, Singapore Pools and Singapore Turf Club donated $1,500,000 to 26 associations.
GCS was fully supported by the National Heritage Board in the application. The successful
applicants would be selected by the Istana.

On 14 November 2016, GCS received the formal letter that informed us of being selected as
the recipient of $20,000 subsidy. This result could motivate Chinese associations and other
organisations to contribute in preserving Singapore cultural heritage.

3.3 Report by Education Committee (Members: Giap Leong PBM, Tee Hiyang, Ee

Cheong, Yok Chun, Lian Chong

3.3.1 Report on Scholarship and Bursary Awards 2016

The Scholarship and Bursary Presentation Ceremony was held on 22 October 2016
(Saturday) at the Heritage Hall (3F). A total of $3,400 was dispersed to 15 students for
scholarship; a total of $6,500 was dispersed as bursary for 9 students.

3.3.2 The 132nd Anniversary Celebration of GESS & Gan Clan Academic Awards & Special
Awards Presentation
The 132nd Anniversary Celebration of GESS & Gan Clan Academic Awards & Special
Awards Presentation was held on 10 March 2017 (Friday), 2pm, at GESS Hall.

This year, 13 Gan Clan Academic Awards ($100 each) and 10 Gan Clan Special Awards
($200 each) were given to 23 students. The total amount was $3,300.

Committee

3.4.1 Report on Membership Figures

The number of members who are contactable by the Membership Committee stands at 727;
of which 704 are Life Members, 13 are Associate Members, 1 is Term Member and 9 are
Youth Members.

New Members No.
Life Members 8
Deceased Members 5

3.5 Report by the Recreation and Community Outreach Committee (Chairman: Ee

Cheong, Vice Chairman: Teck Lee

3.5.1 Members’ Night
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11 sessions of Members’ Night were held between July 2016 and June 2017.

Date Attendance
29 July 2016 8
26 August 2016 5
30 September 2016 10
28 October 2016 11
25 November 2016 5
30 December 2016 5
24 February 2017 9
24 March 2017 9
28 April 2017 12
26 May 2017 8
30 June 2017 10

3.6 Report by External Relations Committee (Members: Tiong Kang, Tee Hiyang,

Tien Chan

3.6.1 Reporton collaboration with Singapore Chinese Clan Associations

SIN Association Contribution

1 The 31st Annual General Meeting of SFCCA -

2 The 24th Anniversary Celebration of Che Hian Khor Moral Self-Payment
Uplifting Society (Singapore) by Participants
The 92nd Anniversary Celebration of Hui Ann Association Congratulatory flowers
The 110th Anniversary Dinner of Singapore Lee Clan Congratulatory flowers
General Association

5 The 78th Anniversary Dinner of Singapore Amoy Congratulatory flowers
Association

6 The 52th Anniversary Dinner of Teo Ann Huay Kuan $200

7 The 87th Anniversary Celebration of Yee Clan Association Congratulatory flowers
The Inauguration Ceremony of ECHK’s Renovated Building | Congratulatory flowers
and Installation of Lift

9 Tanjong Pagar — Tiong Bahru Lunar New Year Celebration $200
Dinner

10 Huang Shi Zong Hui (Singapore) Annual Spring Dinner | Congratulatory flowers
cum Scholarship and Bursary Presentation Ceremony

11 The Inauguration Dinner of Eng Choon Hway Kuan Congratulatory flowers
Singapore’s Council

12 SFCCA - District Clan Gathering -

13 The Opening Ceremony of Singapore Chinese Cultural | -
Centre

14 SCCC Cultural Extravaganza: The Opening Ceremony | -
of the Chinese Cultural Week

15 Gathering of the Minister and GCS leaders -

3.6.2 The 50th Anniversary of Gan Association Selangor & Wilayah Persekutuan, the 30th
Anniversary of Youth Group, the 17th Anniversary of Ladies Group and the 17th
Anniversary of Federation of Gan Association of Malaysia Celebration Dinner
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Twenty-nine representatives of GCS attended this event on 11 September 2016 (Saturday), at
First World Hotel’s ball room in Genting Malaysia.

To congratulate the event, GCS presented a customised monument as a gift and donated
RM10,000 to the Federation of Gan Association of Malaysia as a return for their donation to
the 50th Anniversary of Gan Clan Singapore Celebration Dinner.

3.6.3 Visit by Foreign Clansmen (14-15 September 2016)
On 14 September 2016, GCS held a welcome dinner to receive 148 foreign clansmen from
Philippines, Taiwan, Fujian , Sichuan, Zhejiang, Liaoning, Guizhou, Hainan, Chongging,
Shenzhen, Nanjing, Hunan, Jiangxi and Jiangsu.

To welcome the foreign clansmen, 41 advisors, committee and members of GCS, and 35
representatives of Eng Choon Hway Kuan Singapore and An Hai Association attended the
dinner.

In the morning of 15 September, we were honour to take the foreign clansmen for a tour to
GCS and Gan Heritage Centre.

3.6.4 The 14th World Gan Clan Conference
The 14th World Gan Clan Conference was held on 8 November 2016 in Qufu, Shandong,
China. GCS took this chance to organise a 9-day, 8-night Shandong tour (5 - 13 November
2016) and 25 representatives attended it. GCS presented $2,000 (RMB10,000) to the
conference as a token of congratulations.

3.6.5 Indonesia Gan Clan Conference
The 2nd Indonesia Gan Clan Conference was held between 22 and 23 April 2017 in Jakarta.
GCS grabbed the chance to organise a four-day conference travel trip (22-26 April 2017)
and 9 representatives attended the conference. GCS presented $300 (RP3,000,000) to the
conference as a token of congratulations.

Financial Report (Hon Treasurer: Boon San pBM, Vice Hon Treasurer: Cheng

Lu)

4.1 Approved Financial Report for 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Attached Appendix I for more details.

Appointment of 2017/2018 audit firm

To appoint the current external audit firm, Heng Lee Seng LLP, to audit Gan Clan Singapore’s
financial report FY 2018.

Appointment of Trustee for Gan Clan Singapore asset management

To appoint the current trustee, British and Malayan Limited, to manage Gan Clan Singapore’s asset
at 18 and 20 Bukit Pasoh Road Singapore 089832 for the year.

Extraordinary Matters
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Guarantee

Regarding the incorporation of GCS as a company limited by guarantee, the Meeting of the
Standing Committee had concluded the following points:

1.

3.
4.

To discuss the necessity of changing the existing constitution and register Gan Clan
Singapore under Registrar of Companies (ROC). After taking the asset and scale of GCS
into consideration, it was found that the only item that is most likely to subject to risks is the
high value fix asset, which is the association building. There is no sophisticated investment,
so there should be no major risk.

Company limited requires stricter management and higher running costs. Associations that
have transformed into company limited are those with massive asset and sophisticated
personnel. Considering GCS’s current situation, there is no urgent need for the conversion.
Appointing trustee to manage GCS’s asset is enough for current need.

In conclusion, there is no need to register GCS with ROC unless it is demanded by law.

8 Gan Community Development Foundation

Regarding setting up the Gan Foundation, the Meeting of the Standing Committee had concluded
the following points:

1.

Previously, only charities and educational institutions could establish foundation and the
donors could claim multiple times tax deduction on their donations. After the establishment
of CFS recently, associations could also set up official public foundations which are
managed by CFS.

Once the donations are credited into the Gan Foundation, GCS will not be able to use the
money for other purposes.

The foundation could only be used on activities for the community.

In conclusion, this project will require a committee to execute. The committee members
should be able to continue the work and consider the following issues:

a) Renaming the foundation as Gan Community Development Foundation

b) Raising the minimal fund requirement at one time.

The Council Meeting agrees that the Advisor, Dr. Gan See Khem, and the Vice President, Tee
Hiyang, will discuss the execution plan together. Therefore, the following issues will be fully in
charge by the committee.

9 Any other business

Members who would like to submit matters for discussion may do so 7 days in advance of the
Annual General Meeting.
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Gan Clan {Singaporc)

Statemeut by the President, Honorary Treasurer
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017

Tn our cpinion, the accompanying financial statements of Gan Clan (Singapore) (“the Association”), sct out on pages 4
to 25 are drawn up in accordance with the provigion of (he Singapore Societies Act (Cap. 311) (“the Act”) and Singapore
Pinancial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Association as al
31 March 2017, and of the financial performance, changes in (unds and reserves and cash flows of the Association for

the financial year then ended,

Gan Giap Leong Gan Boon San
President Honorary Treasurer

Singapore: 13 July 2017
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Independent Aunditor’s Reportl
to the members of Gan Clan (Singapore)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Gan Clan (Singapore)} (“the Association™), sel oul on pages 4 to 25 which
comprise the balance sheet of the Association as at 31 March 2017, the statement of comptrehensive income, statement
of changes in funds and reserves and statement ot cash flows of the Association for the financial year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Societies Act (Cap. 311) (“the Act”) and Financial Reporling Standards in Singapore {PRSs) so as to give a true and
fair view of the linancial posilion of the Association as at 31 March 2017 and of the tinancial performance, changes in
funds and reserves and cash flows of the Association for the financial vear ended on that datc.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audirt in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are ndependent of the Association in accordance with the Accouniing and Corporate Regulatory
Authority (ACRA) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entitics (ACRA
Code) together with the ethical requirements that arc relevant to our audil of the financial statements in Singapore, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requitements and the ACRA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Pinancial Statements

Management. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to error or fraud,

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for asscssing the Association’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mallers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
acceunting unless management either intends fo liguidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so,

Those charged wilh governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are [ree from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditar’s teport (hat includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance with SSAs
will always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or crror antd are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of uscrs taken on the basis of (hese financial statements.,

Amember of
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Independent Auditor’s Report ‘
to the members of Gan Clan (Singapoere) (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {continued) )
As part of an audit in sccordance with S5As, we cxercisc professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Idemtify and assess (he risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obrain audit evidence that is sufficient and
zppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for ope resulling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an undersianding of intecrnal conérol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting cstimates and related
disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions thal may cast
significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a material
uneertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadetuate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Associalion (o ccasc to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stafements, including (he disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentalion. %

‘We conununicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we idemify
during our audit,

Report on Other Legal und Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Societies Regulation enacled under the Act {o be kepl
by the Association have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Heng Lee Seng LLP

Public Accountants and Xchartered
Accountants

Singapore

13 July 2017

A member of
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Gan Clan (Singapore)

Statement of Comprehensive Income %é‘ﬂiﬁi
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017

Income YA
Dividend income A% &
Interest income #) &N
Members’ subscription and donations N4 % A= 474k
Rental income ALk A\
Other income 3t A A

Expenditure ¥ #
Administrative expenses {7 # 7 %
Deficit before tax BLACAT 48 5
Tax expense P74 %
Deficit after tax transfer to accumulated fund

RERARRELENFTF

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

TR Ao £ a9 AL R T WA A

- Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale financial assets

THEEWHTEAME (TH) / KR
Other comprehensive income R 444l

Total comprehensive income for the year #5481k 3 ¥

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

157

2017 2016
$ $
10,200 10,228
3,783 6,549
565 1,600
276,000 205,000
3,019 3,599
293,567 226,976
(349,831) (335,542)
(56,264) (108,566)
(17,192) (497)
(73,456) (109.,063)
2,960 (2,460)
2,960 (2,460)
(70,496) (111,523)
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Gan Clan (Singapore)
Balance Sheet I * fi tk&

as at 31 March 2017

Current assets &3 F >

&

Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 & L4 % -4

Other receivables 3t & &2 & 3k R

Non-current assets 3 &% ¥ &

Available-for-sale financial assets T 4 &4 F =

Investment properties 4% 3% /= ik

Property, plant and equipment = Jb & i %

Total assets & #f #*

Current liabilities #£37 R 4

Trade payables & 4+ % 5 # A
Other payables JtA4& & 4437
Current tax liabilities i 504 % 71 1t

Non-current liabilities JEi& 57 £ 4t
Deferred tax liabilities iR & Fr /34 71 1

Total Liabilities & fi 4%

Net assets # 3 >

Funds 4

Accumulated fund % 42 3k 4

Asset revaluation reserve % /= ¥ 4% fif %
Fair value reserve #L{i 1% &

Other funds -4t 4 4

Total funds and reserves % %2 for i &

Note

2017 2016
$ $
904,085 811,919
31,552 37,882
935,637 849,801
211,960 209,000
14,538,384 14,570,708
420,041 511,580
15,170,385 15,291,288
16,106,022 16,141,089
77,100 74,700
228,025 223,364
18,521 17,774
323,646 315.838
16,445 -
340,091 315.838
15,765,931 15,825,251
828,853 902,309
14,618,186 14,618,186
13,924 10,964
304,968 293,792
15,765,931 15,825,251

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gan Clan (Singapore)

Statement of Changes in Funds and Reserves X4 %Atk 4 p o4

for the financial year ended 31 March 2017

2017

At 1 April 2016

Deficit for the year 4 /% 7%

Other comprehensive income ;147 A i

- Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial assets
TH B 53E & AT

Total comprehensive income for the year

FRESKAER

Donations received 48 #k A7 73

Grants from National Heritage Board I8 % S 4% 5% #

Utilisation of funds % 4z

Scholarships paid 3 5 4 % #

At 31 March 2017

2016

At April 2015

Deficit for the year 4F & 7+ F

Other comprehensive income 442 41L&

- Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets
T E 4T AR

Total comprehensive income for the year

R & ]

Transfer between funds % 4 .4

Grants from National Heritage Board B & 345 £ 4% 3

Utilisation of funds % 4%

Scholarships paid 344 %

At 31 March 2016

ke N SRS ke EAe
Accumulated Asset revaluation Fair value Other Total
Note fund reserve reserve funds funds
$ $ $ $ $

902,309 14,618,186 10,964 293,792 15,825,251
| (73.456) - : 5 (73.456)

17 2 : 2,960 - 2,960
P (73,456) - 2,960 - (70,496)

18 - - - 21,000 21,000

18 - - - 2,350 2,350
18 - - - (2,274) (2,274)
18 - - - (9,900) (9,900)

828,853 14,618,186 13,924 304,968 15,765,931

1,111,372 14,618,186 13,424 205,222 15,948,204
| (109,063) . 5 ] (109.063)
17 - - (2,460) - (2,460)
(109,063) - (2,460) - (111,523)

(100,000) - - 100,000 -

18 - - - 250 250
18 - - - (3,880) (3,880)
18 - - = (7,800) (7,800)

902,309 14,618,186 10,964 293,792 15,825,251

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

S5
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Gan Clan (Singapore)

Statement of Cash Flows #, 2% &
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017

Note 2017

Operating activities #% &%)
Deficit before tax #4754 AT (56,264)
Adjustments for: 4 %

Depreciation of: 4718

2016

(108,566)

32,323
95,728
(10,228)

(6,549)

- investment properties 4% it /* sk 10 32,324
- property, plant and equipment = Jk %1% % 11 95,875
Dividend income FZ & &N (10,200)
Interest income # &L A (3.,783)
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
AAREGAMYTERLLRE 57,952

Changes in working capital: & #)# & KL
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables

2,708

(16,722)

(11,920)
3.471

(22,463)

(11,430)
(1,594)

F A AR Y/ (35 I) 6,330
Increase/(decrease) in: & ( #&V)
- trade payables & 4% 5 5 H R 2,400
- other payables 3t A4t 443K 7 4,661
Cash flows generated from/(used in) operations
ZEMRA/ (RAT) LR 71,343
Net proceeds/(utilisation) from other funds
Mt eadlca/ (FIRM) %5 11,176
Tax paid &ALk 6 .
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities
ZEEHTRA (AT) 894 RLH 82,519

(35.487)

Investing activities 3% ¥ &%

10,228
6,549
(7,104)

Dividend received A% &P 4% 10,200
Interest received #) & A7 15 3,783
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ¥ 3% /= 1k % % % 11 (4,336)
Net cash flows generated from investing activities

AT EH) AT I 9,647

9,673

Cash and cash equivalents 3.2 2 R.2 ¥ 4t4h

(25,814)
837,733

Net increase/(decrease) & 318/ (%) 92,166
At1 April 811,919
At 31 March 7 904,085

811,919

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gan Clan (Singapore)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017

These notes form an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.

1. Domicile and activities

Gan Clan (Singapore), Registration No. S66SS0032D (“the Association™), is registered under the Societies Act
and domiciled in the Republic of Singapore. The address of its registered office is 18 — 20 Bukit Pasoh Road
Singapore 089832.

The objects of the Association are to extend networking and connectivity amongst Gan Clan members, promote
traditional Chinese values and language, and contribute to the development of multi-cultural Singapore.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (FRSs).

2.2Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise
described in the notes below.

2.3Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Singapore dollar ($), which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Association operates (functional currency).

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following note:

Note 10 - Impairment of investment properties

The Association assesses annually whether any indication of impairment exists.
Where an indicator of impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable amount
is made, which is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. These assessments required the use of estimates and assumptions such
as long term growth rates, discount rates, future capital requirements and operating
performance. Fair value is determined as management’s best estimate of the amount
that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction
between knowledgeable and willing parties. No impairment loss has been recognised
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.
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Gan Clan (Singapore)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements (continued)
Measurement of fair values
A number of the Association’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is included in the following
note:

Note 9 — Available-for-sale financial assets

2.5 Adoption of new and revised standards
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except in the current
financial year, the Association has adopted all the new and revised standards which are relevant to the
Association and are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or before 1 April 2016. The adoption
of these standards did not have any material effect on the financial statements.

2.6 New standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are issued but effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 April 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. The Association does not plan to early adopt these standards.

The following standards that have been issued but not yet effective are as follows:

Effective for
annual periods

beginning
on or after
FRS 109 Financial Instruments 1 Jan 2018
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 Jan 2018
FRS 116 Leases 1 Jan 2019
Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosure Initiative 1 Jan 2017
Amendments to FRS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets 1 Jan 2017
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to FRS 102: Classification and Measurement of 1 Jan 2018
Share-Based Payment Transactions
Amendments for FRS 115: Clarifications to FRS 115 Revenue from 1 Jan 2018
Contracts with Customers
Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets Date to be
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture determined

Except for FRS 115, those charged with governance expect that the adoption of the other standards
above will have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The
nature of the impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of FRS 115 is described below.

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

FRS 115 establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under FRS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Key issues for the Association include identifying performance obligations, accounting for contract
modifications, applying the constraint to variable consideration, evaluating significant financing
components, measuring progress toward satisfaction of a performance obligation, recognising contract
cost assets and addressing disclosure requirements.

The new standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under FRS. Either a full
or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 with early adoption permitted.
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Gan Clan (Singapore)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements. Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

3.1Revenue

3.2

3.3

3.4

(i) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the
total rental income, over the term of the lease.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(iii)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(iv)  Membership subscription
Membership subscription is taken into account when received.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and the Association will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. These
grants are then recognised in profit or loss as ‘other income’ on a systematic basis over the useful life
of the asset. Grants that compensate the Association for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or
loss as ‘other income’ on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.

Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related
services are rendered by employees.

(ii)  Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid under short-term cash bonus of profit-sharing plans if the Association has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past services provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Operating leases — As lessor
Leases where the Association retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset

are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

- 10 -
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Gan Clan (Singapore)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.5 Tax
Income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for:

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Association is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in
which the Association expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. For investment property that is measured at fair value, the presumption that the
carrying amount of the investment property will be recovered through sale has not been rebutted.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity,
or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Association takes into account the impact
of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Association
believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment
of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on
estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New
information may become available that causes the Association to change its judgement regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period
that such a determination is made.

<] Irs
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Gan Clan (Singapore)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.5Tax (continued)

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

- Where the GST incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of GST included.

3.6 Financial instruments
Financial assets, financial liabilities and equity are recognised on the balance sheet when the
Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets classification, recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose for which these financial assets
were acquired and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially recognised at fair
value.

Financial assets

(i) Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets which have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less impairment. Interest is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

The Association’s loans and receivables in the balance sheet comprise other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents.

(ii)  Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS”)

Certain shares and debt securities held by the Association are classified as AFS if they are not
classified in any of the other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
fair value and changes therein are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the fair value reserve, with the exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the
effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve is included in profit or loss for the
period.

Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any impairment loss.

A | 2=
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Gan Clan (Singapore)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.6Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
(iii)  Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than fair value to profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each financial year. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that the estimated future cash flows of the assets have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets are reduced by the impairment loss directly with
the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, any subsequent increase in fair value after
an impairment loss is recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses on equity
instruments at cost which are not reversed.

(vi)  Derecognition of financial assets
The Association derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition, any difference between the carrying amount and the sum of proceeds
received and amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

(i) Classification
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.

(ii) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
or other financial liabilities. The Association does not have financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

(iii)  Other financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, where applicable, using the effective interest method.

- 13-
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.6Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
(iv)  Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Association derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Association’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, bank balances, demand deposits
and other short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents also includes bank overdrafts and excludes any pledged deposits. In the
balance sheet, bank overdrafts are presented within borrowings under current liabilities.

3.8 Investment properties
Investment properties include those freehold land and building that are held for long term rental yields
under operating leases and/or for capital appreciation or for a currently indeterminate use. Investment
properties include properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.

Cost model

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price
and any directly attributable expenditure, e.g. professional fee for legal services, stamp duty, etc.

Depreciation is calculated using a straight line method to allocate the depreciable amount over the
estimated useful lives of 99 years.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. The effects of any revision are included in profit or loss when the
changes arise. Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

Investment properties are subject to renovations or improvements at regular intervals. The cost of major
renovations and improvements is capitalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced components are
recognised in profit or loss. The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor improvements is recognised
in profit or loss when incurred.

On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

s
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.9Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Dismantlement, removal and restoration costs are included as part of the cost if the obligation
for dismantlement, removal and restoration is incurred as a consequence of acquiring the
property, plant and equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

(ii)  Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the component will flow to the Association, and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day
services of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii)  Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment, unless it
is included in the carrying amount of another asset. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is recognised from the date that the property, plant and equipment are installed
and are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset

is completed and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

plant and equipment 5 —10 years
lifts 20 years
renovation 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the books
until disposed of.

(iv)  Derecognition
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the

difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognised in profit or loss.

-15-
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.10  Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Association’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The Association’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than
one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for
impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

4. Other income FA&ACA

2017 2016
$ $

Learning journey fee & 3] Z 3% % 450 920
Rental of clan hall and heritage hall 17T f= AT A1 260 1,400
Refund from CPF 2424 By ik 3 - 957
Special employment credit 4734 Jk ARk 70 -
Temporary employment credit #3417t b 4p 11 90 -
Wages credit scheme #o # 4k 115 71 %] 1,149 -
Others 3L 4t 1,000 322

3,019 3,599

- 16 -
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5.

Deficit before tax Ff #3784 F

The following items have been included in arriving at deficit before tax:

Depreciation of: 4718

- investment properties 4% /= 1k

- property, plant and equipment = dk % 3% %

Employee benefits expenses: f& i #2444

Salaries, bonuses and other costs # 7K, & 4r4= 3L b & A
Contribution to defined contribution plans i& fk 4>+ %) #t4+

Tax expense Fr 3.4 Ai

Based on results for the financial year: YA B 45 R A R 4%
Deferred taxation iR 3& AT #54%

VAL SRS R A AR

Under provision in respect of previous financial years:
Current taxation % 7 A7 #3-4%
Deferred taxation iR 3EFff44L

Note

10
11

Note

12

12

Reconciliation of statutory tax charge to the Association’s effective tax charge is as follows:

Deficit before tax Fif 13-4% a7 &9 77 5

Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate 17% (2016: 17%)
VAR & 2 AL F 1 7%
Tax effect of non-deductible items 3F 3% 51 B 64 By 75-4%

Tax effect of income not subject to tax A< N % HuAi 69 P i34t

Capital allowances claimed 7 A& 4R b & &
Deferred tax not recognized 7 i& #F iR 69 iR 3 F 134
Effective tax charge for current financial year “F & # 24 9%

Movement in tax liabilities & #4837 % #)

At 1 April

Tax paid E4H %
Tax expense #t % FF 4
At 31 March

2017 2016
$ $
32,324 32,323
95,875 95,728
40,867 47,990
811 1,338
41,678 49328 .
2017 2016
$ $
5,260 .
747 497
11,185 <
17.192 497
(56,264) (108,566)
(9,565) (18,456)
16,559 26,290
(1,734) (1,739)
x (24,097)
: 18,002
5260 a
17,774 18.871
- (1,594)
747 497
18,521 17.774

As at the reporting date, the Association has the following unabsorbed tax losses and unutilised donations
available for offset against future taxable profits subject to compliance with the relevant sections of the income

tax legislations and to agreement with the tax authorities:

Unabsorbed tax losses A A% 45 4
Unutilised donations A% 47 3%

S50 o 5

2017 2016
$ $
8,910 73,345
79,000 79,000
87.910 152,345
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Tax expense (continued) F7#5#% R

Future tax benefits arising from unabsorbed tax losses and unutilised donations have not been recognised as
deferred tax assets in the financial statements as there is no reasonable certainty of their recovery in future

periods.

Cash and cash equivalents B2 Z 4£47M &

Cash and bank balances L4 & 5847 %] 4
Short term deposits %23 4 3k

(a) Short term deposits bear effective interest rate of 1.50% (2016: 1.66%) per annum.

(b)  The Association’s exposure to credit risk is disclosed in Note 20.

Other receivables J-4& 2 A3 R

Due from unrelated parties & 4% 3F X % 7 R
Deposits #RiE4
Prepayments 74 #k 7

2017 2016
$ $
250,544 247,462
653,541 564,457
904,085 811,919
2017 2016
$ $
12,115 5,797
13,070 5,220
6.367 26,865
31,552 37,882

(a) The amounts due from unrelated parties are non-trade, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b)  The Association’s exposure to credit risk is disclosed in Note 20.

Available-for-sale financial assets 4% th 4 W 4% =

Note
At T April
Fair value gain/(loss) {5 (F41) / & A 17
At 31 March

Available-for-sale financial assets are analysed as follows:

Listed securities: /4 1iE 7
Equity securities — Singapore #f v 3 A & iE A&

Fair value hierarchy

2017 2016
$ $
209,000 211,460
2,960 (2,460)
211,960 209,000
211,960 209,000

Listed securities amounting to $211,960 (2016: $209,000) are measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)

in active markets and has been categorised as Level 1 based on the inputs to the valuation technique.
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10.

11.

Investment properties 44 & 3

Valuation #F 1%
At 1 April and 31 March

Comprising: €.4&
-Land +3b
- Building % 54

Accumulated depreciation & #8718
At 1 April

Charge for financial year 4 & 4718
At 31 March

Carrying amount JiK i M
At 31 March

The fair value of the investment properties 4% 3¢ /= b #L{#4

Investment properties are leased under operating leases (Note 19).

Note

2017 2016
$ $

14,700,000 14,700,000
11,500,000 11,500,000
3,200,000 3,200,000
14,700,000 14,700,000
129,292 96,969
32,324 32,323
161,616 129,292
14,538,384 14,570,708
17,500,000 17,500,000

Investment properties comprise a 4-storey commercial building that is majority leased to an unrelated party.
The lease contains an initial non-cancellable period of 3 years. Subsequent renewal is negotiated with the lessee.

No contingent rents are charged.

2017 2016
$ $
The following amounts are recognised in profit or loss:
Rental income #1L &% A\ 276,000 205,000
Direct operating and finance expenses arising from:
- investment properties that generated rental income
LT 7 LA IR AR B AL AN (37.238) (31,560)
Property, plant and equipment 3. % 3% 4
RAABA
Furniture and & 1% % ]
Note equipment Lifts Renovation Total
$ $ $ $
2017
Cost & X
At 1 April 2016 236,859 208,300 681,902 1,127,061
Additions #f73% 4,336 - - 4,336
At 31 March 2017 241,195 208,300 681,902 1,131,397
Accumulated depreciation
R AR IH
At 1 April 2016 167,916 107,608 339,957 615,481
Charge during financial year
F A8 5 17,270 10,415 68,190 95,875
At 31 March 2017 185,186 118,023 408,147 711,356
Carrying amount g M
At 31 March 2017 56,009 90,277 273,755 420,041
-19-
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11.

12.

13.

Property, plant and equipment (continued) * b & ¥ R84

KRAABA
Furniture and A ®1% B
Note equipment Lifts Renovation Total
$ $ $ $

2016
Cost i X
At 1 April 2015 235,005 208,300 676,652 1,119,957
Additions #73§ 1,854 - 5,250 7,104
At 31 March 2016 236,859 208,300 681,902 1,127,061
Accumulated depreciation
Z AR I
At 1 April 2015 150,618 97,193 271,942 519,753
Charge during financial year
F & A8 5 17,298 10,415 68,015 95,728
At 31 March 2016 167,916 107,608 339,957 615,481
Carrying amount JiK i /i {i
At 31 March 2016 68,943 100,692 341,945 511,580

Deferred tax liabilities & X 4% 4 f £k

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown on the balance sheets as follows:

Note

Deferred tax liabilities: iR & .4 7 it

- to be settled after one year — /5 2&

The movement in the deferred tax account is as follows:
RIEHHPOBHRAA 4 T:

1 April

Tax charge to profit or loss 545 & & & 6946 % 6
At 31 March

Trade payables R {3 5 52k

Accrued operating expenses & A+ A AFiE 4F 9
Deposits received A% 2| R iE £

The Association’s exposure to liquidity risk are disclosed in Note 20.

2017 2016
$ $
16,445 -
16,445 -
16,445 -
2017 2016
$ $
6,900 5,700
70,200 69,000
77,100 74,700
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14. Other payables F /& B /43350

Current &3}

Due to unrelated parties 3F %% 7
Amount held in trust for other parties

BB XA T HFA

Note

(a)

2017 2016
$ $
- 2,022
228,025 221,342
228,025 223,364

(a) The amount held in trust for other parties is known as the International World Gan Clan Education Fund
(IWGEF) and arise from donations raised through the first event of the International Convention of Gan

Clan held in Singapore on 6 April 1991.

During the International Convention, members decided to establish the IWGEF to help international
Gan Clan members. Initial donations raised amounted to $200,000. The amount has been placed in a
fixed deposit with accumulated interest generated forming part of the principal. No decision has been

made on the usage of the IWNGEF as at the reporting date.

(b)  The Association’s exposure to liquidity risk is disclosed in Note 20.

15. Accumulated fund R#iRE 4

At 1 April
Current year’s deficit transfer from statement of

comprehensive income M 42 &A% & & 5 £ 05 F K F

Transfer between funds k4 A 4%
At 31 March

16.  Asset revaluation reserve 3 = & {4k 4

At 1 April and 31 March

The asset revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of investment properties disclosed in Note 10.

17. Fair value reserve Al %%

At 1 April

Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale financial assets

THEHE M ST A (FHR) /R
At 31 March

205

Note

2017 2016
$ $
902,309 1,111,372
(73,456) (109,063)
- (100,000)
828,853 902,309
2017 2016
$ $
14,618,186 14,618,186
2017 2016
$ $
10,964 13,424
2,960 (2,460)
13,924 10,964
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18.

Other funds it X4

2017

At 1 April 2016

Donations received Fff 4 #

Grants from National Heritage Board 544 & 453k
Utilisation of funds % 4i& Jf| 37

Scholarship paid 3¢ % 4 ¥ #

Transfer between funds % 4 Z 4%

At 31 March 2017

2016

At 1 April 2015

Grants from National Heritage Board 344 8 1%k
Utilisation of funds 2 £3& 37

Scholarship paid 3¢ 5 4 ¥ #

Transfer between funds 2 4 7 4%

At31 March 2016

w5 8 HHAE LRERELAE HAMERES X
Financial Education Heritage Centre Building R
Assistance Fund Fund Fund Sinking Fund Total
$ $ $ $ $
5,770 35,646 57,818 194,558 293,792
- 1,000 20,000 - 21,000
- - 2,350 - 2,350
- (293) (1,981) - (2,274)
- (9,900) - - (9,900)
(5,770) 5,770 - - -
- 32223 78,187 194,558 304,968
5,770 43,446 61,448 94,558 205,222
- - 250 - 250
- - (3.880) — (3,880)
- (7,800) - - (7.800)
- - - 100,000 100,000
5,770 35,646 57,818 194,558 293,792
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19.

20.

Commitments &K

Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The Association has entered into commercial leases on its investment properties. These non-cancellable leases

have remaining lease terms of less than 3 years.

Future minimum rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

Not later than one year %/ F 1
Later than one year but not later than five years % T 1 {2 R F 5 5

Financial risk management ¥ % X K% ¥

2017 2016
$ $
276,000 276,000

92,000 368,000
368,000 644,000

The note presents information about the Association’s exposure to each of the following risks: credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk, and the Association’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and

managing risk, and the Association’s management of capital.

Risk management framework

Those charged with governance had overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the

Association’s risk management framework.

The Association’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Association, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the

Association’s activities.

(a)  Categories of financial instruments #f # £~ %

The following table sets out the financial instruments at the end of the financial year:

Financial assets ¥ 4% #*

Loans and receivables it %A= & J% 2k 7

i. other receivables 3t 4t & % 2k A

ii. cash and cash equivalents #L4 % #L4 %44
Available-for-sale financial assets o 4 i 1% 3% =
Total financial assets ¥ %% /= & A=

Financial liabilities # % %1 £k

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost i 4% sk A& 89 % ft it
i. trade payables K4}k

ii. other payables L4t & 4+ 3 M

Total financial liabilities M % i 1 % A=

=23

2017 2016
$ $

12,115 5,797
904,085 811,919
211,960 209,000
1,128,160 1,026,716
6,900 5,700
228,025 223,364
234,925 229.064
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20. Financial risk management (continued) ¥ 4 ¥ K& 32

(b)  Credit risk f§ AR
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Association if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Association’s loans
and receivables.

Exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and receivables at the reporting date was as follows:

Carrying amount
2017 2016
$ $
Other receivables Jt b 52 443K 12,115 5,797
Cash and cash equivalents #L4& B L& % i 4h 904,085 811,919
916,200 817,716

Other receivables &4 57 J5 2k 7
Management has assessed the other receivables at the end of the reporting period and conclude that
there is no indication for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents L4 &34 % #-4h
The Association’s cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions
counterparties with high-credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

(¢c)  Liquidity risk £20ER &
Risk management policy
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Association’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Association’s reputation.

Typically the Association ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Less than Between
amount 1 year 1 to5 years
$ $ $
2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE4#7 % £ % fi 4%

; s K A4 N S e
Trade and other payables & 4 & 3t At & A+ 307 234925 234,925 i

Non-derivative financial assets 3E#7 4 & 8B >

Cash and cash equivalents #L& & JL4& ¥ #M-4h 904,085 904,085 -
Other receivables 3t b &2 di 3 o7 12,115 12,115 -
Available-for-sale financial assets T 4% it 4 iF = 211,960 - 211,960
1,128,160 916,200 211,960
Net exposure B 893,235 681,275 211,960
224 -
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20.

21.

22.

oL/l

Financial risk management (continued)

HEReER

(¢)  Liquidity risk (continued) #£0F% &

Exposure to liquidity risk (continued)

Carrying Less than  Between
amount 1 year 1to5 years
$ $ $
2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE47 £ &%k fi 4%
Trade and other payables & 4+ & 3t 4t f2 43k 37 229064 229,064 .
Non-derivative financial assets JE#7 4 &8 ¥ =
Cash and cash equivalents L4 & L& % -4k 811,919 811,919 5
Other receivables 3t 4b & J& 3R 5,797 5,797 =
Available-for-sale financial assets ¥ 4 th 4 i 209,000 - 209,000
1,026,716 817,716 209,000
Net exposure 4 J & 797,652 588,652 209,000

(d)  Market risk FHX K
(i) Interest rate risk ) & JC K [&

The Association is not exposed to interest rate risk as the Association does not have significant

variable interest-bearing financial instruments.

(ii)  Foreign currency risk ] o &%

The Association is not exposed to foreign currency risk as the Association does not have

significant financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies.

Fair value measurements 3 {# & §

The fair value measurements by level of hierarchy are as follows:

I quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1];

. inputs other than quoted prices, included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly [Level 2]; and

iii. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
[Level 3].

The following table presents the assets and liabilities measured at fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Assets ¥ &>
Available-for-sale financial assets o[t tH &£ & =

Authorisation of financial statements for issue

Level 1
$

211,960

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the manage ment

council on 13 July 2017.

=
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Supporting Schedules
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017

Administrative expenses £7 & % A

Accounting fee & it %%

Activities expenses & #) 7¢ %

Advertisement J~ % %

Anniversary expenses J& 4F /& & %

Audit fees ¥ it 3

Bank charges 4% 17 # A

Computer expenses % /% # Jf

Depreciation of investment properties 4% 7 /= L4718
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment /= 3k & 1% % 4718
Donation 47 #

Entertainment 4% /&

Gan Clan — Gan Heritage Centre 7 K A &— i K S ALAE
Greeting/condolences expenses #LH /% F % A
Insurance # % %

Newspaper and periodicals & % %

Postage [t #

Printing and stationery %} ¥ & 5C £ 9%

Professional fee % 1 %%

Property tax /= kA%

Repairs and maintenance 4 #% %

Staff CPF contributions 2 i 242 4 44+

Staff medical ¥2 i [& 2

Staff salaries and bonuses 2 i # & 4275 4¢

Staff welfare ¥2 i3 ##

Subscription fees 4 #

Taxation fees HIL 7

Telephone charges % 35 #

Transportation 33 #

Water and electricity 7K % 3¢

These schedules are prepared for management purposes and do not form part of the financial statements.

-26-

2017 2016
$ $

3,600 3.360
25,248 7.429
9,520 3,165
24,161 .
4,500 4,500
230 200
1,393 1,809
32,324 32,323
95.875 95,728
2,700 26,600
580 3421
17,298 17,031
1,645 713
6,210 6,342
414 292
1,583 1,818
5.221 7416
2,434 9,711
37,238 31,560
21,721 17.898
811 1338
95 61
40,772 47,629
a 300
200 200
1,200 1,200
1,763 1,849
134 121
10,961 11,528
349.831 335,542
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